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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

 
September 25,

2021
December 26,

2020
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,429 $ 21,520 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $2,210 ($2,395 - 2020) 139,716 121,228 
Inventories, net 506,397 391,679 
Other current assets 15,600 19,280 

Total current assets 676,142 553,707 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $273,966 ($236,031 - 2020) 173,170 182,674 
Goodwill 825,981 816,200 
Other intangibles, net of accumulated amortization of $337,361 ($291,434 - 2020) 810,559 825,966 
Operating lease right of use assets 84,871 76,820 
Deferred tax assets 2,016 2,075 
Other assets 14,295 11,176 

Total assets $ 2,587,034 $ 2,468,618 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 219,397 $ 201,461 
Current portion of debt and capital leases 7,174 11,481 
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 12,680 12,168 
Accrued expenses:

Salaries and wages 11,893 29,800 
Pricing allowances 9,878 6,422 
Income and other taxes 4,252 5,986 
Interest 940 12,988 
Other accrued expenses 36,613 31,605 

Total current liabilities 302,827 311,911 
Long term debt 890,623 1,535,508 
Warrant liabilities 81,180 — 
Deferred tax liabilities 139,547 156,118 
Operating lease liabilities 77,238 68,934 
Other non-current liabilities 22,189 31,560 

Total liabilities $ 1,513,604 $ 2,104,031 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)
Stockholders' Equity:

Common stock, $0.0001 par, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 187,569,511 issued and
187,481,206 outstanding at September 25, 2021 and 90,934,930 issued and outstanding
at December 26, 2020 19 9 
Additional paid-in capital 1,317,706 565,815 
Accumulated deficit (216,728) (171,849)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (27,567) (29,388)

Total stockholders' equity 1,073,430 364,587 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 2,587,034 $ 2,468,618 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Unaudited)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 25,
2021

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 26,
2020

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended 
September 25,

2021

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended
September 26,

2020
Net sales $ 364,480 $ 398,680 $ 1,081,476 $ 1,041,226 
Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation and amortization
shown separately below) 236,999 227,481 654,264 590,294 

Selling, general and administrative expenses 110,447 107,333 325,288 292,056 
Depreciation 14,454 15,926 46,065 50,673 
Amortization 15,504 14,883 45,827 44,596 
Management fees to related party 56 130 270 451 
Other (income) expense 315 (2,175) (2,232) (2,120)
Income (loss) from operations (13,295) 35,102 11,994 65,276 
Loss on change in fair value of warrant liability 3,990 — 3,990 — 
Interest expense, net 11,801 20,688 49,979 67,746 
Interest expense on junior subordinated debentures 1,471 3,219 7,775 9,555 
(Gain) loss on mark-to-market adjustments (261) (773) (1,685) 1,169 
Refinancing charges 8,070 — 8,070 — 
Investment income on trust common securities (44) (94) (233) (283)
Income (loss) before income taxes (38,322) 12,062 (55,902) (12,911)
Income tax provision (benefit) (5,798) 2,758 (11,023) (2,374)
Net income (loss) $ (32,524) $ 9,304 $ (44,879) $ (10,537)

Basic income (loss) per share $ (0.19) $ 0.10 $ (0.38) $ (0.12)
Weighted average basic shares outstanding 168,440 89,745 116,945 89,673

Diluted income (loss) per share $ (0.19) $ 0.10 $ (0.38) $ (0.12)
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 168,440 90,525 116,945 89,673

Net income (loss) from above $ (32,524) $ 9,304 $ (44,879) $ (10,537)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments (4,740) 3,070 1,575 (4,500)
Hedging activity 246 — 246 — 
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (4,494) 3,070 1,821 (4,500)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (37,018) $ 12,374 $ (43,058) $ (15,037)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HILLMAN SOLUTIONS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

 
Thirty-nine

Weeks Ended 
September 25,

2021

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended
September 26,

2020
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss $ (44,879) $ (10,537)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Depreciation and amortization 91,892 95,269 
Deferred income taxes (21,538) (1,963)
Deferred financing and original issue discount amortization 3,036 2,805 
Stock-based compensation expense 8,817 3,818 
Increase in fair value of warrant liabilities 3,990 — 
Write off of deferred financing fees, premiums and discounts
associated with debt refinancing (8,372) — 

Asset impairment — 210 
(Gain) on disposal of property and equipment — (23)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration (1,110) (1,300)
Other non-cash interest and change in value of interest rate swap (1,685) 1,245 
Changes in operating items:

Accounts receivable (17,097) (60,470)
Inventories (110,065) (16,793)
Other assets 3,003 (15,276)
Accounts payable 12,896 42,201 
Other accrued liabilities (24,193) 28,402 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (105,305) 67,588 
Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of business, net of cash received (39,102) (800)
Capital expenditures (36,955) (29,182)

Net cash used for investing activities (76,057) (29,982)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayments of senior term loans (1,072,042) (7,956)
Borrowings on senior term loans 883,872 — 
Proceeds from recapitalization of Landcadia, net of transaction costs 455,161 — 
Proceeds from sale of common stock in PIPE, net of issuance costs 363,301 — 
Repayments of senior notes (330,000) — 
Repayment of Junior Subordinated Debentures (108,707) — 
Financing fees (20,988) — 
Borrowings on revolving credit loans 246,000 78,000 
Repayments of revolving credit loans (244,000) (94,000)
Principal payments under finance and capitalized lease obligations (697) (624)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,761 — 

Net cash (used by) provided by financing activities 173,661 (24,580)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 610 (63)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (7,091) 12,963 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 21,520 19,973 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 14,429 $ 32,936 
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid on junior subordinated debentures, net $ 7,542 $ 9,272 
Interest paid 55,624 59,147 
Income taxes paid 1,990 475 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HILLMAN SOLUTIONS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

Common Stock Treasury Stock

Shares Amount Shares Amount

Additional
Paid-in-
capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Total
Stockholders'

Equity
Thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021
Balance at December 26, 2020 90,934,930 $ 9 — $ — $ 565,815 $ (171,849) $ (29,388) $ 364,587 

Net Loss — — — — — (8,970) — (8,970)
Stock-based compensation — — — — 1,741 — — 1,741 
Proceeds from exercise of
stock options 268,253 $ — — $ — 1,643 — — 1,643 
Change in cumulative foreign
currency translation
adjustment — — — — — — 2,473 2,473 

Balance at March 27, 2021 91,203,183 $ 9 — $ — $ 569,199 $ (180,819) $ (26,915) $ 361,474 

Net Loss — — — — — (3,385) — (3,385)
Stock-based compensation — — — — 1,796 — — 1,796 
Proceeds from exercise of
stock options 17,718 — — — 118 — — 118 
Change in cumulative foreign
currency translation
adjustment — — — — — — 3,842 3,842 

Balance at June 26, 2021 91,220,901 $ 9 — $ — $ 571,113 $ (184,204) $ (23,073) $ 363,845 

Net Loss — — — — — (32,524) — (32,524)
Stock-based compensation — — — — 5,280 — — 5,280 
Vesting of restricted shares 88,305 — — — — — — — 
Proceeds from exercise of
stock options — — — — — — — — 
Recapitalization of
Landcadia, net of issuance
costs and fair value of of
assets and liabilities acquired 58,672,000 6 — — 378,016 — — 378,022 
Shares issued to PIPE, net of
issuance costs 37,500,000 4 — — 363,297 — 363,301 
Hedging activity — — — — — — 246 246 
Change in cumulative foreign
currency translation
adjustment — — — — — — (4,740) (4,740)

Balance at September 25, 2021 187,481,206 $ 19 — $ — $ 1,317,706 $ (216,728) $ (27,567) $ 1,073,430 

Thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020
Balance at December 28, 2019 548,040 $ 5 (4,740) $ (4,320) $ 557,674 $ (147,350) $ (32,040) $ 373,969 

Retroactive application of
recapitalization 89,001,575 4 4,740 4,320 (4,324) — — — 

Balance at December 28, 2019 -
Recast 89,549,615 9 — — 553,350 (147,350) (32,040) 373,969 

Net Loss — — — — — (14,804) — (14,804)
Stock-based compensation — — — — 1,145 — — 1,145 
Vesting of restricted shares 88,305 — — — — — — — 
Change in cumulative foreign
currency translation
adjustment — — — — — — (11,213) (11,213)

Balance at March 28, 2020 89,637,920 $ 9 — $ — $ 554,495 $ (162,154) $ (43,253) $ 349,097 

Net Loss — — — — — (5,037) — (5,037)
Stock-based compensation — — — — 1,524 — — 1,524 
Change in cumulative foreign
currency translation
adjustment — — — — — — 3,643 3,643 

Balance at June 27, 2020 89,637,920 $ 9 — $ — $ 556,019 $ (167,191) $ (39,610) $ 349,227 

Net Income — — — — — 9,304 — 9,304 
Stock-based compensation — — — — 1,148 — — 1,148 
Vesting of restricted shares 88,305 — — — — — — — 
Change in cumulative foreign
currency translation
adjustment — — — — — — 3,070 3,070 

Balance at September 26, 2020 89,726,225 $ 9 — $ — $ 557,167 $ (157,887) $ (36,540) $ 362,749 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands)

 

1. Basis of Presentation:

Hillman Solutions Corp., its predecessor for accounting purposes HMAN Group Holdings Inc.., and wholly-owned subsidiaries are collectively referred to herein as the
"Company." The accompanying unaudited financial statements include the condensed consolidated accounts of the Company for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25,
2021. Unless the context requires otherwise, references to "Hillman," "we," "us," "our," or "our Company" refer to Hillman Solutions Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. The Hillman Solutions Corp. is the newly formed parent company of HMAN Group Holdings Inc.
(previously known as “Holdco”).

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements present information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
for interim financial information and the instructions to Form 10-Q and applicable rules of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all information or footnotes
required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. Operating results for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 do not
necessarily indicate the results that may be expected for the full year. For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 26,
2020 and notes thereto included in the S-1 filed on August 25, 2021 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

On July 14, 2021, privately held HMAN Group Holdings Inc. ("Old Hillman"), and Landcadia Holdings III, Inc. (“Landcadia” and after the Business Combination described
herein, “New Hillman”), a special purpose acquisition company ("SPAC") consummated the previously announced business combination (the “Closing”) pursuant to the terms
of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 24, 2021 (as amended on March 12, 2021, the "Merger Agreement”) by and among Landcadia, Helios Sun Merger
Sub, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landcadia (“Merger Sub”), HMAN Group Holdings Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Hillman Holdco”) and CCMP Sellers’ Representative,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company in its capacity as the Stockholder Representative thereunder (the “Stockholder Representative”). Pursuant to the terms of the Merger
Agreement, Merger Sub merged with and into Hillman Holdco with Hillman Holdco surviving the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of New Hillman, which was renamed
“Hillman Solutions Corp.” (the “Merger” and together with the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the “Business Combination”). Unless the context
indicates otherwise, the discussion of the Company and its financial condition and results of operations is with respect to New Hillman following the closing date and Old
Hillman prior to the closing date. See Note 3 - Merger Agreement for more information.

In connection with the closing of the Business Combination on July 14, 2021, Landcadia changed its name from “Landcadia Holdings III, Inc." to “Hillman Solutions Corp.”
and the Company’s common stock and warrants began trading on The Nasdaq Stock Market under the trading symbols “HLMN” and “HLMNW,” respectively.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
The significant accounting policies should be read in conjunction with the significant accounting policies included in the S-1 filed on August 25, 2021 with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses for the reporting periods. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The extent to which COVID-19 impacts the Company’s business and financial results will depend on numerous evolving factors including, but not limited to: the magnitude
and duration of COVID-19, the extent to which it will impact worldwide macroeconomic conditions including interest rates, employment rates and health insurance coverage,
the speed of the anticipated recovery, and governmental and business reactions to the pandemic. The Company assessed certain accounting matters that generally require
consideration of forecasted financial information in context with the information reasonably available to the Company and the unknown future impacts of COVID-19 as of
September 25, 2021 and through the date of this report. The accounting matters assessed included, but were not limited to the carrying value inventory and the carrying value of
the goodwill and other long-lived assets.
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands)

In 2020, the pandemic had a significant impact on the Company's business, driving high demand for personal protective equipment, including face masks, disposable gloves,
sanitizing wipes, and disinfecting sprays. During 2020, at the request of our customers, the Company began to sell certain categories of protective and cleaning equipment that
are not a part of our core product offerings, including wipes, sprays, masks and bulk boxes of disposable gloves. High demand and limited supply of these products available for
retail sale drove prices and cost up in 2020. In contrast, in 2021 the pandemic has had less of an impact on the Company's business, economic activity has generally recovered,
and consumer access to personal protective equipment has normalized. By the end of the third quarter of 2021 the Company's product mix has begun to normalize back to near
pre-pandemic levels. In 2021, demand for certain protective products softened as vaccines were rolled out and supply returned to a more normal level. In the third quarter of
2021, we evaluated our customers' needs and the market conditions and ultimately decided to exit certain protective product categories. In connection with the exit of these
product lines, the Company recorded an inventory valuation charge of $32,026 thousand including the write off of inventory along with costs for donation and disposal of the
remaining inventory on hand. Excluding the inventory valuation charge, there was not a material impact to the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of and for the
quarter ended September 25, 2021, the Company’s future assessment of the magnitude and duration of COVID-19, as well as other factors, could result in material impacts to
the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements in future reporting periods.

Warrant Liabilities:
The Company accounts for the warrants in accordance with the guidance contained in ASC 815-40 under which the warrants do not meet the criteria for equity treatment and
must be recorded as liabilities. Accordingly, the Company classifies the warrants as liabilities at their fair value and adjusts the warrants to fair value at each reporting period.
This liability is subject to re-measurement at each balance sheet date until exercised, and any change in fair value is recognized in the Company's statement of operations. See
Note 11 - Warrants for additional information.

Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognized when control of goods or services is transferred to our customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in
exchange for those goods or services. Sales and other taxes the Company collects concurrent with revenue-producing activities are excluded from revenue.

The Company offers a variety of sales incentives to its customers primarily in the form of discounts and rebates. Discounts are recognized in the consolidated financial
statements at the date of the related sale. Rebates are based on the revenue to date and the contractual rebate percentage to be paid. A portion of the cost of the rebate is
allocated to each underlying sales transaction. Discounts and rebates are included in the determination of net sales.

The Company also establishes reserves for customer returns and allowances. The reserve is established based on historical rates of returns and allowances. The reserve is
adjusted quarterly based on actual experience. Returns and allowances are included in the determination of net sales.

The following table displays our disaggregated revenue by product category:

Thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021

Hardware and
Protective Solutions

Robotics and Digital
Solutions Canada Total Revenue

Fastening and Hardware $ 189,935 $ — $ 34,648 $ 224,583 

Personal Protective 71,521 — 79 71,600 
Keys and Key
Accessories — 52,586 778 53,364 

Engraving — 14,853 20 14,873 

Resharp — 60 — 60 

Consolidated $ 261,456 $ 67,499 $ 35,525 $ 364,480 
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands)

Thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020

Hardware and
Protective Solutions

Robotics and Digital
Solutions Canada Total Revenue

Fastening and Hardware $ 202,876 $ — $ 38,383 $ 241,259 

Personal Protective 97,431 — 12 97,443 
Keys and Key
Accessories — 44,974 790 45,764 

Engraving — 14,205 2 14,207 

Resharp — 7 — 7 

Consolidated $ 300,307 $ 59,186 $ 39,187 $ 398,680 

Thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021

Hardware and
Protective Solutions

Robotics and Digital
Solutions Canada Total Revenue

Fastening and Hardware $ 557,745 $ — $ 114,565 $ 672,310 

Personal Protective 217,769 — 270 218,039 
Keys and Key
Accessories — 144,969 1,345 146,314 

Engraving — 44,635 53 44,688 

Resharp — 125 — 125 

Consolidated $ 775,514 $ 189,729 $ 116,233 $ 1,081,476 

Thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020

Hardware and
Protective Solutions

Robotics and Digital
Solutions Canada Total Revenue

Fastening and Hardware $ 543,832 $ — $ 98,430 $ 642,262 

Personal Protective 239,151 — 78 239,229 
Keys and Key
Accessories — 119,001 2,039 121,040 

Engraving — 38,666 5 38,671 

Resharp — 24 — 24 

Consolidated $ 782,983 $ 157,691 $ 100,552 $ 1,041,226 

The following table disaggregates our revenue by geographic location:

Thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021

Hardware and
Protective Solutions

Robotics and Digital
Solutions Canada Total Revenue

United States $ 256,407 $ 66,563 $ — $ 322,970 

Canada 1,866 936 35,525 38,327 

Mexico 3,183 — — 3,183 

Consolidated $ 261,456 $ 67,499 $ 35,525 $ 364,480 
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands)

Thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020

Hardware and
Protective Solutions

Robotics and Digital
Solutions Canada Total Revenue

United States $ 295,689 $ 58,566 $ — $ 354,255 

Canada 2,292 620 39,187 42,099 

Mexico 2,326 — — 2,326 

Consolidated $ 300,307 $ 59,186 $ 39,187 $ 398,680 

Thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021
Hardware and Protective

Solutions
Robotics and Digital

Solutions Canada Total Revenue
United States $ 760,946 $ 187,602 $ — $ 948,548 
Canada 5,145 2,127 116,233 123,505 
Mexico 9,423 — — 9,423 
Consolidated $ 775,514 $ 189,729 $ 116,233 $ 1,081,476 

Thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020
Hardware and Protective

Solutions
Robotics and Digital

Solutions Canada Total Revenue
United States $ 771,064 $ 156,249 $ — $ 927,313 
Canada 4,833 1,442 100,552 106,827 
Mexico 7,086 — — 7,086 
Consolidated $ 782,983 $ 157,691 $ 100,552 $ 1,041,226 

Our revenue by geography is allocated based on the location of our sales operations. Our Hardware and Protective Solutions segment contains sales of Big Time personal
protective equipment into Canada. Our Robotics and Digital Solutions segment contains sales of MinuteKey Canada.

Hardware and Protective Solutions revenues consist primarily of the delivery of fasteners, anchors, specialty fastening products, and personal protective equipment such as
gloves and eye-wear as well as in-store merchandising services for the related product category.

Robotics and Digital Solutions revenues consist primarily of sales of keys and identification tags through self service key duplication and engraving kiosks. It also includes our
associate-assisted key duplication systems and key accessories.

Canada revenues consist primarily of the delivery to Canadian customers of fasteners and related hardware items, threaded rod, keys, key duplicating systems, accessories,
personal protective equipment, and identification items as well as in-store merchandising services for the related product category.

The Company’s performance obligations under its arrangements with customers are providing products, in-store merchandising services, and access to key duplicating and
engraving equipment. Generally, the price of the merchandising services and the access to the key duplicating and engraving equipment is included in the price of the related
products. Control of products is transferred at the point in time when the customer accepts the goods, which occurs upon delivery of the products. Judgment is required in
determining the time at which to recognize revenue for the in-store services and the access to key duplicating and engraving equipment. Revenue is recognized for in-store
service and access to key duplicating and engraving equipment as the
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands)

related products are delivered, which approximates a time-based recognition pattern. Therefore, the entire amount of consideration related to the sale of products, in-store
merchandising services, and access to key duplicating and engraving equipment is recognized upon the delivery of the products.

The costs to obtain a contract are insignificant, and generally contract terms do not extend beyond one year. Therefore, these costs are expensed as incurred. Freight and
shipping costs and the cost of our in-store merchandising services teams are recognized in selling, general, and administrative expense when control over products is transferred
to the customer.

3. Merger Agreement

On July 14, 2021, the Merger between HMAN and Landcadia was consummated. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, at the closing date of the Merger, the outstanding shares
of Old Hillman common stock were converted into 91,220,901 shares of New Hillman common stock as calculated pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

The Merger was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded, in accordance with GAAP. Under this method of accounting,
Landcadia is treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes. This determination was based primarily on Old Hillman having the ability to appoint a majority
of the initial Board of the combined entity, Old Hillman's senior management comprising the majority of the senior management of the combined company, and the ongoing
operations of Old Hillman comprising the ongoing operations of the combined company. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the Merger was treated as the equivalent of New
Hillman issuing shares for the net assets of Landcadia, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of Landcadia was stated at carrying value, with no goodwill or other
intangible assets recorded. The historical statements of the combined entity prior to the Merger are presented as those of Old Hillman with the exception of the shares and par
value of equity recast to reflect the exchange ratio on the Closing Date, adjusted on a retroactive basis. A summary of the impact of the reverse recapitalization on the cash, cash
equivalents and restricted cash, change in net assets and the change in common shares is included in the tables below.

Landcadia cash and cash equivalents $ 479,602 
PIPE investment proceeds 375,000
Less cash paid to underwriters and other transaction costs, net of tax $ (36,140)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents as a result of recapitalization $ 818,462 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 132
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses (81)
Warrant liabilities $ (77,190)
Change in net assets as a result of recapitalization $ 741,323 

The change in number of shares outstanding as a result of the reverse recapitalization is summarized as follows:

Common shares issued to New Hillman Shareholders 91,220,901 
Shares issued to SPAC Sponsors and public shareholders 58,672,000 
Common shares issued to PIPE investors 37,500,000 
Common Shares outstanding immediately after the Business Combination 187,392,901 

1. These assets and liabilities represent the reported balances as of the Closing Date immediately prior to the Business Combination. The recapitalization of the assets and
liabilities from Landcadia's balance sheet was a non-cash financing activity.

2. In connection with the Business Combination, Landcadia entered into subscription agreements with certain investors (the “PIPE Investors”), pursuant to which it issued
37,500,000 shares of common stock at $10.00 per share (the “PIPE Shares”) for an aggregate purchase price of $375,000 (the “PIPE Financing”), which closed
simultaneously with the consummation of the Business Combination.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(1)

(1)

(1)(4)

(5)

(6)

(2)
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3. In connection with the Business Combination, the Company incurred $36,140 of transaction costs, net of tax, consisting of underwriting, legal and other professional
fees which were recorded as accumulated deficit as a reduction of proceeds.

4. The warrants acquired in the Merger include (a) redeemable warrants issued by Landcadia and sold as part of the units in the Landcadia IPO (whether they were
purchased in the Landcadia IPO or thereafter in the open market), which are exercisable for an aggregate of 16,666,628 shares of common stock at a purchase price of
$11.50 per share (the “Public Warrants”) and (b) warrants issued by Landcadia to the Sponsors in a private placement simultaneously with the closing of the Landcadia
IPO, which are exercisable for an aggregate of 8,000,000 shares of common stock at a purchase price of $11.50 per share (the “Private Placement Warrants”).

5. The Company issued 91,220,901 common shares in exchange for 553,439 Old Hillman common shares resulting in an exchange ratio of 164.83. This exchange ratio was
applied to Old Hillman's common shares which further impacted common stock held at par value and additional paid in capital as well as the calculation of weighted
average shares outstanding and loss per common share.

6. The Company issued 50,000,000 shares to the public shareholders and 8,672,000 shares to the SPAC sponsor shareholders at the Closing Date.

4. Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting which provide
optional guidance for a limited time to ease the potential burden in accounting for reference rate reform. In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-01, Reference Rate
Reform (Topic 848). The amendments in this ASU refine the scope of ASC 848 and clarifies some of its guidance as it relates to recent rate reform activities.The new guidance
provides optional expedients and exceptions for applying GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships and other transactions affected by reference rate reform if certain criteria are
met. The amendments apply only to contracts and hedging relationships that reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be discontinued due to reference rate
reform. These amendments are effective immediately and may be applied prospectively to contract modifications made and hedging relationships entered into or evaluated on or
before December 31, 2022. The Company is currently evaluating contracts and the optional expedients provided by the new standard.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. The amendments in this update remove certain
exceptions of Topic 740 including: exception to the incremental approach for intraperiod tax allocation when there is a loss from continuing operations and income or gain from
other items; exception to the requirement to recognize a deferred tax liability for equity method investments when a foreign subsidiary becomes an equity method investment;
exception to the ability not to recognize a deferred tax liability for a foreign subsidiary when a foreign equity method investment becomes a subsidiary; exception to the general
methodology for calculating income taxes in an interim period when a year-to-date loss exceeds the anticipated loss for the year. There are also additional areas of guidance in
regards to: franchise and other taxes partially based on income and the interim recognition of enactment of tax laws and rate changes. The provisions of this ASU are effective
for years beginning after December 15, 2020. The Company adopted this standard during fiscal 2021 and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

5. Acquisitions:

On April 16, 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of Oz Post International, LLC ("OZCO"), a leading manufacturer of superior quality hardware that offers structural
fasteners and connectors used for decks, fences and other outdoor structures, for a total purchase price of $39,102. The Company entered into an amendment ("OZCO
Amendment") to the term loan credit agreement dated May 31, 2018 (the "2018 Term Loan"), which provided $35,000 of incremental term loan funds to be used to finance the
acquisition. OZCO has business operations throughout North America and its financial results reside in the Company's Hardware and Protective Solutions reportable segment.
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The following table reconciles the fair value of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities to the preliminary total purchase price of OZCO. The total purchase price is
preliminary as the Company is in the process of finalizing certain working capital adjustments.

Accounts receivable $ 1,143 
Inventory 3,564 
Other current assets 24 
Property and equipment 595
Goodwill 9,450 
Customer relationships 23,500 
Trade names 2,600 
Technology 4,000 

Total assets acquired 44,876 
Less:
Liabilities assumed (5,774)
Total purchase price $ 39,102 

Pro forma financial information has not been presented for OZCO as their associated financial results are insignificant to the financial results of the Company on a standalone
basis.

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

Goodwill amounts by reportable segment are summarized as follows:

Goodwill at
Acquisitions Dispositions Other

Goodwill at
December 26, 2020 September 25, 2021

Hardware and Protective
Solutions $ 565,578 $ 9,450 $ — $ (32) $ 574,996 

Robotics and Digital Solutions 220,936 — — — 220,936 
Canada 29,686 — — 363 30,049 

Total $ 816,200 $ 9,450 $ — $ 331 $ 825,981 
 

(1) See Note 5 - Acquisitions for additional information regarding the OZCO acquisition.

(2) The "Other" change to goodwill relates to adjustments resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates for the Canada and Mexico reporting units.

Other intangibles, net, as of September 25, 2021 and December 26, 2020 consist of the following: 

Estimated
Useful Life

(Years) September 25, 2021 December 26, 2020
Customer relationships 13 - 20 $ 965,488 $ 941,648 
Trademarks - Indefinite Indefinite 85,676 85,603 
Trademarks - Other 7 - 15 29,000 26,400 
Technology and patents 8 - 12 67,756 63,749 

Intangible assets, gross 1,147,920 1,117,400 
Less: Accumulated amortization 337,361 291,434 

Other intangibles, net $ 810,559 $ 825,966 

(1)  (2)
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The amortization expense for amortizable assets, including the adjustments resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks
ended September 25, 2021 was $15,504 and $45,827, respectively. Amortization expense for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020 was $14,883 and
$44,596, respectively.

The Company tests goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually in the fourth quarter. Impairment is also tested when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values of the assets may be greater than their fair values. During the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and the
thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020, the Company did not identify any triggering events that would result in an impairment analysis outside of the annual
assessment.

7. Commitments and Contingencies:

The Company self-insures its product liability, automotive and workers' compensation losses up to $250 per occurrence. General liability losses are self-insured up to $500 per
occurrence. Catastrophic coverage has been purchased from third party insurers for occurrences in excess of $250 up to $60,000. The two risk areas involving the most
significant accounting estimates are workers' compensation and automotive liability. Actuarial valuations performed by the Company's outside risk insurance expert were used
by the Company's management to form the basis for workers' compensation and automotive liability loss reserves. The actuary contemplated the Company's specific loss
history, actual claims reported, and industry trends among statistical and other factors to estimate the range of reserves required. Risk insurance reserves are comprised of
specific reserves for individual claims and additional amounts expected for development of these claims, as well as for incurred but not yet reported claims. The Company
believes that the liability of approximately $2,683 recorded for such risks is adequate as of September 25, 2021.

As of September 25, 2021, the Company has provided certain vendors and insurers letters of credit aggregating $25,908 related to our product purchases and insurance coverage
for product liability, workers’ compensation, and general liability.

The Company self-insures group health claims up to an annual stop loss limit of $250 per participant. Historical group insurance loss experience forms the basis for the
recognition of group health insurance reserves. Provisions for losses expected under these programs are recorded based on an analysis of historical insurance claim data and
certain actuarial assumptions. The Company believes that the liability of approximately $2,300 recorded for such risks is adequate as of September 25, 2021.

On June 3, 2019, The Hillman Group, Inc. ("Hillman Group") filed a complaint for patent infringement against KeyMe, LLC ("KeyMe"), a provider of self-service key
duplication kiosks, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas (Marshall Division). The case was assigned Civil Action No. 2:19-cv-0209. Hillman
Group’s complaint alleges that KeyMe’s self-named and “Locksmith in a Box” key duplication kiosks infringe U.S. Patent Nos. 8,979,446 and 9,914,179, which are assigned to
Hillman Group, and seeks damages and injunctive relief against KeyMe. After the United States Patent and Trademark Office issued U.S. Patent No. 10,400,474 to Hillman
Group on September 3, 2019, Hillman Group filed a motion the same day to amend its initial complaint to add the new patent to the litigation. The Texas court granted the
motion on September 13, 2019. KeyMe filed two motions in the case on July 25, 2019, the first seeking to dismiss Hillman Group's complaint under Rule 12(b)(3) of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure for improper venue, or in the alternative, to move the case from Marshall, Texas to the Southern District of New York. KeyMe’s second
motion seeks to transfer the venue of the case from Texas to New York under 28 U.S.C. § 1404. Subsequently, Hillman Group filed a motion on September 4, 2019 to
disqualify KeyMe's counsel Cooley LLP from the litigation due to Cooley's concurrent and prior representation of Hillman Group and predecessor-in-interest MinuteKey
Holdings, Inc ("MinuteKey"). Hillman Group served its initial infringement contentions for the patents-in-suit on KeyMe on September 6, 2019, and KeyMe served its initial
invalidity and unenforceability contentions for the patents-in-suit on Hillman Group on November 15, 2019. The parties filed a joint claim construction statement with the Court
on January 31, 2020, setting forth the disputed constructions of terms and phrases recited in the asserted claims of the patents-in-suit. On February 14, 2020, the Court granted
Hillman Group’s motion to disqualify Cooley LLP, and denied KeyMe’s pending venue-related motion to dismiss and motion to transfer without prejudice to refiling. The case
was stayed until March 30, 2020 to permit KeyMe to retain new legal counsel. The parties filed a joint status report on March 25, 2020, and on March 27, 2020, the Texas Court
set a new case schedule with a trial in early December 2020. On April 14, 2020, KeyMe re-filed a single motion to dismiss for improper venue, or in the alternative, to transfer
the case to the Southern District of New York. After an oral hearing held on September 30, 2020, the Texas Court denied KeyMe’s motion to dismiss on November 13, 2020.
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The Texas Court conducted a claim construction hearing in Marshall, TX, on June 23, 2020 to construe various disputed claim terms of the three patents-in-suit, and issued a
claim construction order on July 2, 2020. On August 31, 2020, KeyMe filed two motions for partial summary judgment on portions of the case, and also filed a motion
objecting to portions of the testimony of one of Hillman Group’s technical expert witnesses. At a pretrial conference held March 23, 2021, the Texas Court denied KeyMe's
motion to exclude expert testimony and KeyMe's motion for summary judgment of no willful infringement in full. KeyMe's motion for summary judgment of non-infringement
relating to U.S. Patent No. 10,400,474 was granted in-part and denied in-part; Hillman Group was permitted to proceed with a theory of infringement under the doctrine of
equivalents at trial.

On March 2, 2020, Hillman Group filed a second complaint for patent infringement against KeyMe in the same Texas Court, alleging that KeyMe’s key duplication kiosks
infringe Hillman Group’s U.S. Patent No. 10,577,830. The case was assigned Civil Action No. 2:20-cv-0070. Hillman Group added a second patent to the case, U.S. Patent No.
10,628,813, upon that patent's issuance on April 21, 2020. Upon issuance of U.S. Patent No. 10,737,336 to Hillman Group on August 10, 2020, Hillman Group moved for leave
of Court to add that patent to the case; however, KeyMe opposed the motion.

KeyMe filed a motion to consolidate the two Texas patent cases involving KeyMe and Hillman Group on April 14, 2020. In addition, on April 30, 2020, KeyMe filed a
substantially identical motion to dismiss the case for improper venue, or in the alternative, to transfer the case to the Southern District of New York. The Texas Court heard oral
argument on the motion to consolidate, the motion to dismiss, and Hillman Group’s motion to add the ’336 patent on September 30, 2020. On October 23, 2020, the Texas
Court granted KeyMe’s motion to consolidate the two Texas cases, and granted Hillman Group’s motion to add the ’336 patent. The Texas Court denied KeyMe’s motion to
dismiss on November 13, 2020. On November 18, 2020, the Texas Court issued a new case schedule for the consolidated case, setting a trial date of April 5, 2021 for the six-
patent case. The parties stipulated in November, 2020 that no new claim construction hearing would be held, and that selected constructions from the 2:19-cv-209 action that
pertained to claims in the 2:20-cv-0070 action would govern. Fact discovery closed in the consolidated case on December 21, 2020, and expert discovery closed on January 22,
2021.

On September 9, 2020, the parties conducted a mediation before Ret. District Judge David Folsom of the U.S. District Court of the Eastern District of Texas. Though
substantive discussion took place, no agreement on resolution of the litigation was reached.

On January 25, 2021, KeyMe filed a second summary judgment motion for a judgment of no willful infringement, and also filed another motion objecting to portions of the
testimony of one of Hillman Group's technical expert witnesses. At a pretrial conference held March 23, 2021, the Texas Court denied both of KeyMe's motions in full.

A jury trial was held in the Texas case from April 5-12, 2021 in Marshall, Texas. On April 12, 2021, the jury returned a verdict that KeyMe did not infringe any of the six
asserted patents, and several of the asserted claims were invalid. Final judgment was entered on April 13, 2021. Both parties filed renewed motions for judgment as a matter of
law on issues they did not prevail on at trial on May 11, 2021, and Hillman Group additionally filed a motion for a new trial on the same date.

On August 16, 2019, KeyMe filed a complaint for patent infringement against Hillman Group in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware. KeyMe alleges
that Hillman Group’s KeyKrafter key duplication machines and MinuteKey self-service key duplication kiosks infringe KeyMe’s U.S. Patent No. 8,682,468 when those
machines are used in conjunction with Hillman Group’s KeyHero system. Hillman Group filed an answer to KeyMe’s complaint on October 23, 2019, and asserted
counterclaims seeking declaratory judgments of invalidity and noninfringement of U.S. Patent No. 8,682,468. On May 4, 2020, the Delaware Court entered a scheduling order
setting trial for November 2021. KeyMe served its initial infringement contentions on June 11, 2020, with Hillman Group serving its initial invalidity contentions on July 16,
2020. The Delaware Court held a claim construction hearing on November 24, 2020, and issued its claim construction order on January 25, 2021. Fact discovery closed in the
Delaware case on January 28, 2021. KeyMe served its final infringement contentions on January 4, 2021; Hillman Group served its final invalidity contentions on January 18,
2021. Expert discovery closed on April 8, 2021. Following the close of discovery, Hillman Group filed a motion for summary judgment of noninfringement and no willful
infringement in the case on April 15, 2021.

As of June 14, 2021, Hillman Group and KeyMe have globally resolved all pending legal disputes, including the Texas and Delaware district court actions discussed above.

On June 1, 2021, Hy-Ko Products Company LLC ("Hy-Ko"), a manufacturer of key duplication machines, filed a complaint for patent infringement against Hillman Group in
the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas (Marshall
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Division). The case was assigned Civil Action No. 2:21-cv-0197. Hy-Ko's complaint alleges that Hillman's KeyKrafter and PKOR key duplication machines infringe U.S. Patent
Nos. 9,656,332, 9,682,432, 9,687,920, and 10,421,113, which are assigned to Hy-Ko, and seeks damages and injunctive relief against Hillman Group. Hy-Ko's complaint
additionally contains allegations of unfair competition under the Federal Lanham Act and conversion/receipt of stolen property, as well as a cause of action for "replevin" for
return of stolen property.

On August 2, 2021, Hy-Ko filed an Amended Complaint which did not deviate substantially from the initial Complaint in any way. Hillman Group responded on August 16,
2021, by filing a Motion to Dismiss the conversion and replevin claims because they are barred by the statute of limitations. In its Motion to Dismiss, Hillman Group also
requested that the Court strike numerous paragraphs of Hy-Ko's Amended Complaint that, on their face, have nothing to do with Hy-Ko's patent infringement, unfair
competition, or conversion and replevin claims. Hillman Group also requested that the Court order Hy-Ko to provide a more definite statement regarding its unfair competition
claim. Briefing on Hillman's Motion to Dismiss was completed on September 14, 2021. To date the Court has not entered an order ruling on Hillman's Motion nor has the Court
set the matter for a hearing.

Discovery has begun in the case and Hy-Ko has served initial interrogatories regarding Hillman Group's knowledge of the patents in suit and Hillman Group's non-infringement
position(s). Hillman Group must respond to the Interrogatories by November 18, 2021. The parties served their Initial and Additional Disclosures on October 20, 2021. Fact
discovery will be on-going through February 22, 2022.

Management and legal counsel for Hillman Group are still investigating this recent suit but are initially of the opinion that Hy-Ko's claims are without merit and Hillman Group
intends to vigorously defend the claims. Hillman Group is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of loss at this early stage in the case.

8. Related Party Transactions

The Company has recorded aggregate management fee charges and expenses from CCMP Capital Advisors, LLC (“CCMP”), Oak Hill Capital Partners III, L.P., Oak Hill
Capital Management Partners III, L.P. and OHCP III HC RO, L.P. (collectively, “Oak Hill Funds”) of $56 and $270 for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25,
2021, respectively, and $130 and $451 for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020, respectively. Subsequent to the Business Combination, the Company is
no longer being charged management fees, Note 3 - Merger Agreement for additional details on the Business Combination.

Gregory Mann and Gabrielle Mann are employed by Hillman. The Company leases an industrial warehouse and office facility from companies under the control of the Manns.
The rental expense for the lease of this facility was $88 and $264 for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, respectively, and was $88 and $263 for the
thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020, respectively.

9. Income Taxes:

Accounting Standards Codification 740 (“ASC 740”) requires companies to apply their estimated annual effective tax rate on a year-to-date basis in each interim period. These
rates are derived, in part, from expected annual pre-tax income or loss. In the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks
ended September 26, 2020, the Company applied an estimated annual effective tax rate to the interim period pre-tax loss to calculate the income tax benefit.

For the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, the effective income tax rate was 15.1% and 19.7%, respectively. The Company recorded an income tax
benefit for the thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 of $5,798 and an income tax benefit for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 of $11,023. The effective tax
rate for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 was the result of an estimated increase in GILTI from the Company's Canadian operations, state and
foreign income taxes, non-deductible transaction expenses, non-deductible loss on the Company's warrant liability, and non-deductible stock compensation.
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For the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020, the effective income tax rate was 22.9% and 18.4%, respectively. The Company recorded an income tax
provision (benefit) for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020 of $2,758 and $(2,374), respectively. The effective tax rate for the thirteen and thirty-nine
weeks ended September 26, 2020 was primarily due to non-deductible stock compensation, and state and foreign income taxes.

On March 27, 2020, the CARES Act was signed into law by the President of the United States. The CARES Act included, among other things, corporate income tax relief in the
form of accelerated alternative minimum tax ("AMT") refunds, allowed employers to defer certain payroll tax payments throughout 2020, and provided favorable corporate
interest deductions for the 2020 reporting period.

10. Restructuring

Canada Restructuring

During 2018, the Company initiated plans to restructure the operations of the Canada segment. The restructuring seeks to streamline operations in the greater Toronto area by
consolidating facilities, exiting certain lines of business, and rationalizing stock keeping units (“SKUs”). The intended result of the Canada restructuring will be a more
streamlined and scalable operation focused on delivering optimal service and a broad offering of products across the Company's core categories. The Company expects
restructuring activities to be completed in 2021. The following is a summary of the charges incurred:

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 25, 2021

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 26, 2020

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended 

September 25, 2021

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended

September 26, 2020
Facility consolidation 
   Labor expenses $ — $ 19 $ — $ 396 
   Inventory valuation adjustments — 47 — 47 
   Consulting and legal fees 26 63 26 114 
   Other expenses — 51 5 713 

Rent and related charges — 434 — 1,523 
Severance 436 37 466 569 

Total $ 462 $ 651 $ 497 $ 3,362 

(1) Facility consolidation includes labor expense related to organizing inventory and equipment in preparation for the facility consolidation, consulting and legal fees related
to the project, and other expenses. These expenses were included in SG&A on the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss.

(1)
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The following represents the roll forward of Canada restructuring reserves for the current period:
Severance and related

expense
Balance as of December 28, 2019 $ 1,121 

Restructuring charges 707 
Cash paid (1,519)

Balance as of December 26, 2020 $ 309 
Restructuring charges 466 
Cash paid (468)

Balance as of September 25, 2021 $ 307 

United States Restructuring

During fiscal 2019, the Company began implementing a plan to restructure the management and operations within the United States to achieve synergies and cost savings
associated with the Company's acquisition activities. This restructuring includes management realignment, integration of sales and operating functions, and strategic review of
the Company's product offerings. This plan was finalized during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2019. The Company incurred additional charges in fiscal 2020 and 2021 related to
the consolidation of two of our distribution centers. Charges incurred in part of the United States Restructuring Plan included:

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 25, 2021

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 26, 2020

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended 

September 25, 2021

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended

September 26, 2020

Management realignment & integration

Severance $ — $ — $ 74 $ 880 

Facility closures

   Severance — 489 — 893 

   Inventory valuation adjustments — 1,568 — 1,568 

Other — 974 — $ 1,003 

Total $ — $ 3,031 $ 74 $ 4,344 

The following represents the roll forward of United States restructuring reserves for the current period:

Severance and related
expense

Balance as of December 28, 2019 $ 3,286 
Restructuring charges 1,789 
Cash paid (4,250)

Balance as of December 26, 2020 $ 825 
Restructuring charges 74 
Cash paid (822)

Balance as of September 25, 2021 $ 77 

11. Warrants:

Each whole warrant entitles the holder thereof to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share. As of September 25, 2021, there were
24,666,628 warrants outstanding consisting of 16,666,628 public warrants, which were included in the units issued in Landcadia's initial public offering ("Public Warrants"),
and 8,000,000 private placement
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warrants, which were included in the units issued in the concurrent private placement at the time of Landcadia's initial public offering ("Private Placement Warrants" and,
collectively with the Public Warrants, the "warrants"). The Public and Private Placement Warrants were accounted for as liabilities and are presented as warrant liabilities on
condensed consolidated balance sheets. The warrant liabilities are measured at fair value at inception and on a recurring basis, with changes in fair value presented within loss on
change in fair value of warrant liabilities in the condensed consolidated statement of operations.

The Public Warrants may only be exercised for a whole number of shares. No fractional warrants were issued upon separation of the units issued in the initial public offering
into their component parts of Public Warrants and shares of common stock. The Public Warrants will become exercisable on the later of 30 days after the completion of the
Business Combination or 12 months from the closing of the Public Offering.

Redemption of the Public Warrants when the price per share of common stock equals or exceeds $18. Once the warrants become exercisable, the Company may redeem the
outstanding warrants (except with respect to the Private Placement Warrants):

• in whole and not in part;
• at a price of $0.01 per warrant;
• upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption to each warrant holder; and
• if, and only if, the reported closing price of the Class A common stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period ending

three business days before the Company sends the notice of redemption to the warrant holders.

Redemption of Public Warrants when the price per share of common stock equals or exceeds $10.00. Once the warrants become exercisable, the Company may redeem the
outstanding warrants:

• in whole and not in part;
• at $0.10 per warrant upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption provided that holders will be able to exercise their warrants on a cashless basis prior

to redemption and receive that number of shares of Class A common stock to be determined by reference to an agreed table based on the redemption date and the “fair
market value” of the shares of Class A common stock;

• if, and only if, the last reported sale price (the “closing price”) of the Class A common stock equals or exceeds $10.00 per share (as adjusted) for any 20 trading days
within the 30-trading day period ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the Company sends the notice of redemption to the warrant holders; and

• if the closing price of the Class A common stock for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the
Company sends the notice of redemption to the warrant holders is less than $18.00 per share (as adjusted), the Private Placement Warrants must also be concurrently
called for redemption on the same terms as the outstanding Public Warrants, as described above.

The “fair market value” of the Class A common stock shall mean the volume weighted average price of the Class A common stock during the 10 trading days immediately
following the date on which the notice of redemption is sent to the holders of warrants. The Company will provide warrant holders with the final fair market value no later than
one business day after the 10-trading day period described above ends. In no event will the warrants be exercisable in connection with this redemption feature for more than
0.361 shares of Class A common stock per warrant (subject to adjustment).

The Private Placement Warrants will be exercisable at the holder’s option, and be non-redeemable (except as described above under “Redemption of the Public Warrants when
the price per share of common stock equals or exceeds $10.00”) so long as they are held by the initial purchasers or their permitted transferees. If the Private Placement
Warrants are held by someone other than the initial purchasers or their permitted transferees, the Private Placement Warrants will be redeemable by the Company in all
redemption scenarios and exercisable by such holders on the same basis as the Public Warrants.
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12. Long Term Debt:

The following table summarizes the Company’s debt:

September 25, 2021 December 26, 2020

Revolving loans $ 74,000 $ 72,000 

Senior term loan, due 2028 851,000 — 

Senior term loan, due 2025 — 1,037,044 

6.375% Senior Notes, due 2022 — 330,000 

11.6% Junior Subordinated Debentures - Preferred — 105,443 

Junior Subordinated Debentures - Common — 3,261 

Capital & finance leases 1,715 2,044 

926,715 1,549,792 
Unamortized premium on 11.6% Junior Subordinated
Debentures — 14,591 

Unamortized discount on Senior term loan (6,183) (6,532)
Current portion of long term debt, capital leases and finance
leases (7,174) (11,481)

Deferred financing fees (22,735) (10,862)

Total long term debt, net $ 890,623 $ 1,535,508 

As of September 25, 2021, there was $851,000 outstanding under the Term Credit Agreement. As of September 25, 2021, the Company had $74,000 outstanding under the ABL
Revolver along with $25,908 of letters of credit. The Company has approximately $150,092 of available borrowings under the ABL Revolver as a source of liquidity.

On April 16, 2021, the Company acquired Oz Post International, LLC ("OZCO"). The Company entered into an amendment ("OZCO Amendment") to the term loan credit
agreement dated May 31, 2018 (the "2018 Term Loan"), which provided $35,000 of incremental term loan funds to be used to finance the acquisition. See Note 5 - Acquisitions
for additional information regarding the OZCO acquisition.

In connection with the Closing as described in Note 1 - Basis of Presentation, the Company entered into a new credit agreement (the “Term Credit Agreement”), which provided
for a new funded term loan facility of $835.0 million and a delayed draw term loan facility of $200.0 million (of which $16.0 million was drawn). The Company also also
entered into an amendment to their existing asset-based revolving credit agreement (the “ABL Amendment”) extending the maturity and conformed certain provisions to the
Term Credit Agreement. The proceeds of the funded term loans under the Term Credit Agreement and revolving credit loans under the ABL Credit Agreement were used,
together with other available cash, to (1) refinance in full all outstanding term loans and to terminate all outstanding commitments under the credit agreement, dated as of May
31, 2018 ("2018 Term Loan" including the OZCO Amendment), (2) refinance outstanding revolving credit loans, and (3) redeem in full senior notes due July 15, 2022 (the
“6.375% Senior Notes”). Additionally, the Company fully redeemed the 11.6% Junior Subordinated Debentures.

The interest rate on the Term Credit Agreement is, at the discretion of the Company, either the adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") rate plus a margin varying
from 2.75% and 2.50% per annum or an alternate base rate plus a margin varying from 1.75% to 1.50% per annum. The Term Credit Agreement is payable in installments equal
0.25% of the original principal amount and delayed draw with a balloon payment due on the maturity date of July 14, 2028. The term loans and other amounts outstanding
under the Term Credit Agreement are guaranteed by the Company's wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries and are secured by substantially all of the Borrower’s and the
guarantors’ assets. The delayed draw term loan facility under the Term Credit Agreement may be used to finance permitted acquisitions and similar investments and to replenish
cash and repay revolving credit loans previously used for permitted acquisitions.

Portions of the ABL Revolver are separately available for borrowing by the Company's United States subsidiary and Canadian subsidiary for $200,000 and $50,000,
respectively. The interest rate for the ABL Revolver is, at the discretion of the Company, either adjusted LIBOR (or a Canadian banker’s acceptance rate in the case of Canadian
Dollar loans) plus a margin varying
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from 1.25% to 1.75% per annum based on availability or an alternate base rate (or a Canadian prime rate or alternate base rate in the case of Canadian Dollar loans) plus a
margin varying from 0.25% to 0.75% per annum based on availability. The stated maturity date of the revolving credit commitments under the ABL Credit Agreement is May
31, 2026. The loans and other amounts outstanding under the ABL Credit Agreement and related documents are guaranteed by Holdings and, subject to certain exceptions, the
Borrower’s wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries and are secured by substantially all of the Borrower’s and the guarantors’ assets plus, solely in the case of the Canadian
Borrower, its and its wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary’s assets, which has guaranteed by the Canadian portion under the ABL Credit Agreement.

In connection with the Term Credit Agreement, the Company recorded $23,432 in deferred financing fees and $6,380 in discount which are recorded as long term debt on the
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. In connection with the ABL Amendment, the Company recorded $3,035 in deferred financing fees which are recorded as other non-
current assets on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Additionally, the Company recorded a loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt for each debt instrument included in the refinancing as detailed below. The Company amended it's
interest rate swaps in connection with the refinancing, see Note 17 - Derivatives and Hedging for additional details.

Loss (gain) on extinguishment of
debt

Term Credit Agreement $ 20,243 
ABL Revolver 288 
6.375% Senior Notes, due 2022 1,083 
11.6% Junior Subordinated Debentures (13,603)
Interest rate swaps 59 
Total $ 8,070 

Additional information with respect to the fair value of the Company’s fixed rate senior notes and junior subordinated debentures is included in Note 18 - Fair Value
Measurements.

13. Leases

Lessee

The Company determines if a contract is or contains a lease at inception or modification of a contract. A contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration. Control over the use of the identified asset means the lessee has both (a) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset and (b) the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company leases certain distribution center locations,
vehicles, forklifts, computer equipment, and its corporate headquarters with expiration dates through 2032. Certain lease arrangements include escalating rent payments and
options to extend the lease term. Expected lease terms include these options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain the Company will exercise the option.
The Company's leasing arrangements do not contain material residual value guarantees nor material restrictive covenants.

Page 21 



Table of Contents
HILLMAN SOLUTIONS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands)

The components of operating and finance lease cost for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26,
2020 were as follows:

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 25,
2021

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended 
September 25,

2021

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 26,
2020

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended
September 26,

2020
Operating lease cost $ 5,482 $ 15,724 $ 4,989 $ 14,283 
Short term lease costs 834 2,820 633 1,682 
Variable lease costs 576 1,334 104 775 
Finance lease cost:

Amortization of right of use
assets 230 668 206 608 
Interest on lease liabilities 29 96 34 106 

Rent expense totaled $6,892 and $19,878 in the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, respectively, and $5,726 and $16,740 in the thirteen and thirty-nine
weeks ended September 26, 2020, respectively. Rent expense includes operating lease cost as well as expense for non-lease components such as common area maintenance, real
estate taxes, real estate insurance, variable costs related to our leased vehicles and also short-term rental expenses.

The implicit rate is not determinable in most of the Company’s leases, as such management uses the Company’s incremental borrowing rate based on the information available
at commencement date in determining the present value of future payments. The weighted average remaining lease terms and discount rates for all of our operating and finance
leases were as follows as of September 25, 2021 and December 26, 2020:

September 25, 2021 December 26, 2020
Operating

Leases Finance Leases
Operating

Leases Finance Leases
Weighted average remaining lease
term 6.81 2.55 7.19 2.61

Weighted average discount rate 7.91% 6.52% 8.28% 7.14%

Supplemental balance sheet information related to the Company's finance leases was as follows as of September 25, 2021 and December 26, 2020:

September 25, 2021 December 26, 2020
Finance lease assets, net, included in
property plant and equipment $ 1,629 $ 1,919 

Current portion of long-term debt 791 872 

Long-term debt, less current portion 924 1,172 

Total principal payable on finance leases 1,715 2,044 

Supplemental cash flow information related to the Company's operating leases was as follows for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and thirty-nine weeks ended
September 26, 2020:

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended 

September 25, 2021

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended

September 26, 2020
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease
liabilities:

Operating cash outflow from operating leases $ 14,854 $ 13,821 
Operating cash outflow from finance leases 99 106 
Financing cash outflow from finance leases 697 624 
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Maturities of our lease liabilities for all operating and finance leases are as follows as of September 25, 2021:

Operating Leases Finance Leases

Less than one year $ 19,078 $ 882 

1 to 2 years 17,362 561 

2 to 3 years 16,174 300 

3 to 4 years 15,562 69 

4 to 5 years 14,680 45 

After 5 years 33,339 — 

Total future minimum rental commitments 116,195 1,857 

Less - amounts representing interest (26,277) (142)

Present value of lease liabilities $ 89,918 $ 1,715 

Lessor

The Company has certain arrangements for key duplication equipment under which we are the lessor. These leases meet the criteria for operating lease classification. Lease
income associated with these leases is not material.

14. Equity and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income:

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following is a detail of the change in the Company's accumulated other comprehensive loss from December 28, 2019 to September 25, 2021, including the effect of
significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (net of tax):

Foreign Currency
Translation

Balance at December 28, 2019 $ (32,040)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications 2,652 
Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive income — 
Net current period other comprehensive income 2,652 
Balance at December 26, 2020 (29,388)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications 1,575 
Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive income 246 
Net current period other comprehensive income 1,821 
Balance at September 25, 2021 $ (27,567)

1. During the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, the Company obtained and amended its interest rate swap agreements to hedge against effective cash flows (i.e.
interest payments) on floating-rate debt associated with the Company's new Term Credit Agreement. Refer to Note 12 - Long Term Debt for further details. In
accordance with ASC 815, derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk record the associated gain or loss within other comprehensive
income. For the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, the Company deferred a gain of $179, reclassified a loss of $150 and associated tax provision of $83 into
other comprehensive income due to hedging activities. The amounts reclassified out of other comprehensive income were recorded as interest expense. See Note 17 -
Derivatives and Hedging for additional information on the interest rate swaps.

15. Stock Based Compensation:

1
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2014 Equity Incentive Plan

Following the Merger and in connection with the business combination described in Note 3 - Merger Agreement, Landcadia Holdings III, Inc. (“Landcadia”) became the direct
parent company of HMAN and was renamed Hillman Solutions Corp. (“New Hillman”). Shares of Class A common stock of New Hillman (“New Hillman Shares”) are
publicly traded on The Nasdaq Capital Market. Consequently, the outstanding stock options issued under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Prior Plan”) prior to the Merger
were converted and modified to purchase New Hillman Shares.

At the Closing, each outstanding option to acquire common stock of Hillman Holdco (a “Hillman Holdco Option”), whether vested or unvested, was assumed by New Hillman
and converted into an option to purchase common stock of New Hillman (“New Hillman Option”) with substantially the same terms and conditions (including expiration date
and exercise provisions) as applicable to the Hillman Holdco Option immediately prior to the Closing, except both the number of shares and the exercise price were modified
using the conversion ratio at closing. Each New Hillman Option is generally subject to the same vesting conditions as the Hillman Holdco Option from which it was converted,
except that the performance-based vesting conditions of any Hillman Holdco Option granted prior to 2021 were adjusted such that the performance-based portion of the
associated New Hillman Option will vest upon certain pre-established stock price hurdles. For all time based options and performance options granted during 2021 the change in
fair value was immaterial and as such no additional compensation cost was recognized. For the performance options granted prior, the modification of the vesting criteria
resulted in $11,542 of additional compensation expense, $3,663 of which was recognized in the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, the remainder of
which will be recognized through Q1 2022.

At the Closing, (i) each share of unvested restricted Hillman Holdco common stock was cancelled and converted into the right to receive a number of shares of New Hillman
restricted stock equal to the Closing Stock Per Restricted Share Amount (as defined in the Merger Agreement) with substantially the same terms and conditions as were
applicable to the related share of Hillman Holdco restricted stock immediately prior to the Closing (including with respect to vesting and termination-related provisions), and
(ii) each Hillman Holdco restricted stock unit was assumed by New Hillman and converted into a New Hillman restricted stock unit award with substantially the same terms and
conditions as were applicable to such Hillman Holdco restricted stock unit immediately prior to the Closing (including with respect to vesting and termination-related
provisions).

Upon closing, the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan may grant options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and other stock-based awards for up to an aggregate of 14,523,510
shares of its common stock.

The following table summarizes the key assumptions used in the valuation model for valuing the Company's stock compensation awards under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan:

Dividend yield 0%
Risk free interest rate 0.40% - 1.81%
Expected volatility 31.50%
Expected terms 6.25 years

Stock Options
The fair value of stock options is determined at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The time-based stock option awards generally vest evenly over four
years from the grant date and performance-based options vest based on specified targets such as Company performance and Company stock price hurdles.
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A summary of the stock option activity under the 2014 Equity Inventive Plan for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 is presented below (share amounts in
thousands):

Number of Shares

Weighted Avg.
Exercise Price per Share

(in whole dollars)
Weighted Avg.

Remaining Contractual Term
Outstanding at December 26, 2020 12,749 $ 7.66 8.0 years

Granted 2,348
Exercised (286)
Forfeited or expired (1,186)

Outstanding at September 25, 2021 13,625 $ 8.13 7.3 years
Exercisable at September 25, 2021 4,936 $ 7.74 6.74 years

Restricted Stock
The Company granted restricted stock at the grant date fair value of the underlying common stock securities. The restrictions lapse in one quarter increments on each of the
three anniversaries of the award date, and one quarter on the completion of the relocation of the recipient to the Cincinnati area or earlier in the event of a change in control. The
associated expense is recognized over the service period.

A summary of the restricted stock activity under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 is presented below (share amounts in
thousands):

Number of Shares

Weighted Avg.
Grant Date Fair Value

(in whole dollars)
Unvested at December 26, 2020 177 $ 7.09 

Awarded — 
Vested (88)
Forfeited or expired — 

Unvested at September 25, 2021 89 $ 7.09 

Restricted Stock Units
The restricted stock units ("RSUs") granted to employees for service generally vest over four years, with 25% vesting on the first anniversary of the grant date and the
remainder vesting ratably on a quarterly basis thereafter, subject to continued employment. The RSUs granted to non-employee directors generally vest in full on the first
anniversary of the grant date.

A summary of the restricted stock unit activity under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 is presented below (share amounts in
thousands):

Number of Shares

Weighted Avg.
Grant Date Fair Value

(in whole dollars)
Outstanding at December 26, 2020 — $ — 

Granted 323 $ 10.00 
Exercised — 
Forfeited or expired — 

Outstanding at September 25, 2021 323 $ 10.00 

2021 Equity Incentive Plan

Effective July 14, 2021, the Company established the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. Under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), the maximum number of shares of Stock
that may be delivered in satisfaction of Awards under the Plan as of the Effective Date is (i) 7,150,814 shares, plus (ii) the number of shares of Stock underlying awards under
the 2014 Equity
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Incentive Plan that on or after the Effective Date expire or become unexercisable, or are forfeited, cancelled or otherwise terminated, in each case, without delivery of shares or
cash therefore, and would have become available again for grant under the Prior Plan in accordance with its terms (not to exceed 14,523,510 shares of Stock in the aggregate)
(the “Share Pool”).

Restricted Stock Units
The RSUs granted to employees for service generally vest over four years, with 25% vesting on the first anniversary of the grant date and the remainder vesting ratably on a
quarterly basis thereafter, subject to continued employment. The RSUs granted to non-employee directors generally vest in full on the first anniversary of the grant date.

A summary of the restricted stock unit activity under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 is presented below (share amounts in
thousands):

Number of Shares

Weighted Avg.
Grant Date Fair Value

(in whole dollars)
Outstanding at December 26, 2020 — 

Granted 50 $ 12.05 
Exercised — 
Forfeited or expired — 

Outstanding at September 25, 2021 50 $ 12.05 

16. Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed based on the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share include the
dilutive effect of stock options, restricted stock awards, and warrants. The following is a reconciliation of the basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS") computations for both
the numerator and denominator (in thousands, except per share data):

Thirteen Weeks Ended
September 25, 2021

Thirty-nine Weeks Ended 
September 25, 2021

Earnings
(Numerator)

Shares
(Denominator)

Per Share
Amount

Earnings
(Numerator)

Shares
(Denominator)

Per Share
Amount

Net loss $ (32,524) 168,440 $ (0.19) $ (44,879) 116,945 $ (0.38)
Dilutive effect of stock options and awards — — — — — — 
Dilutive effect of warrants — — — — — — 
Net loss per diluted common share $ (32,524) 168,440 $ (0.19) $ (44,879) 116,945 $ (0.38)

Thirteen Weeks Ended
September 26, 2020

Thirty-nine Weeks Ended
September 26, 2020

Earnings
(Numerator)

Shares
(Denominator)

Per Share
Amount

Earnings
(Numerator)

Shares
(Denominator)

Per Share
Amount

Net loss $ 9,304 89,745 $ 0.10 $ (10,537) 89,673 $ (0.12)
Dilutive effect of stock options — 780 — — — — 
Net loss per diluted common share $ 9,304 90,525 $ 0.10 $ (10,537) 89,673 $ (0.12)
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Stock options and awards outstanding totaling 1,492,329 and 2,017,795 were excluded from the computation for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021,
respectively, as they would have had an antidilutive effect under the treasury stock method. Warrants of 19,787,515 and 6,595,838 were excluded from the computation for the
thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, respectively, as they would have had an antidilutive effect under the treasury stock method. Stock options and awards
outstanding totaling 7,632,030 and 6,991,911 were excluded from the computation for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020, respectively, as they would
have had an antidilutive effect under the treasury stock method.

17. Derivatives and Hedging:

FASB ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging ("ASC 815"), provides the disclosure requirements for derivatives and hedging activities with the intent to provide users of financial
statements with an enhanced understanding of: (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how the entity accounts for derivative instruments and related hedged
items, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. Further, qualitative disclosures
are required that explain the Company's objectives and strategies for using derivatives, as well as quantitative disclosures about the fair value of and gains and losses on
derivative instruments.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to interest rate fluctuations on its floating rate Term Credit Agreement. The Company measures
those instruments at fair value and recognizes changes in the fair value of derivatives in earnings in the period of change, unless unless the derivative is designated as a cash flow
hedge and qualifies as an effective hedge, in which case those changes in fair value would be recognized on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets within
other comprehensive income.

The Company does not enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes and, therefore, holds no derivative instruments for trading purposes.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

On January 8, 2018, the Company entered into a forward Interest Rate Swap Agreement ("2018 Swap 1") with three-year terms for a notional amount of $90,000. The forward
start date of the 2018 Swap was September 30, 2018 and the termination date is June 30, 2021. The 2018 Swap 1 has a determined interest rate of 2.3%. The 2018 Swap 1 was
terminated on June 30, 2021. In accordance with ASC 815, the 2018 Swap 1 was not designated as a cash flow hedge and therefore changes in fair value were recorded in other
(income) expense on the Company's Statements of Comprehensive Income.

On November 8, 2018, the Company entered into another new forward Interest Rate Swap Agreement ("2018 Swap 2") with three-year terms for a $60,000 notional amount.
The forward start date of the 2018 Swap 2 was November 30, 2018 and the termination date is November 30, 2022. The 2018 Swap 2 has determined interest rate of 3.1%. The
2018 Swap 2 was effectively terminated on July 16, 2021 in connection with the Merger as described in Note 3 - Merger Agreement. In accordance with ASC 815, the 2018
Swap 2 was not designated as a cash flow hedge and therefore changes in fair value were recorded in other (income) expense on the Company's Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

On July 9, 2021, the Company entered into an interest swap agreement ("2021 Swap 1") with three-year terms for a notional amount of $144,000. The forward start date of the
2021 Swap 1 was July 30, 2021 and the termination date is July 31, 2024. The 2021 Swap 1 has a determined fixed interest rate of 0.75%. In accordance with ASC 815, the
Company determined the 2021 Swap 1 constituted an effective cash flow hedge and therefore changes in fair value are recorded within other comprehensive income within the
Company's Statement of Comprehensive Income and the deferred gains or losses are reclassified out of other comprehensive income in the same period during which the
hedged transactions affect earnings.

On July 9, 2021, the Company entered into an interest swap agreement ("2021 Swap 2") with three-year terms for a notional amount of $216,000. The forward start date of the
2021 Swap 2 was July 30, 2021 and the termination date is July 31, 2024. The 2021 Swap 2 has a determined fixed interest rate of 0.76% . In accordance with ASC 815, the
Company determined the 2021 Swap 2 constituted an effective cash flow hedge and therefore changes in fair value are recorded within other comprehensive income within the
Company's Statement of Comprehensive Income and the deferred gains or losses are reclassified out of other comprehensive income in the same period during which the
hedged transactions affect earnings.
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On July 16, 2021, the Company modified its original 2018 Swap 2 derivative instrument ("2021 Swap 3") for a notional amount of $60,000. The forward start date of the 2021
Swap 3 was July 30, 2021 and the termination date is November 30, 2022. The 2021 Swap 3 has a determined fixed interest rate of 3.64% . In accordance with ASC 815, the
Company determined the 2021 Swap 3 constituted an effective cash flow hedge and therefore changes in fair value are recorded within accumulated other comprehensive loss
within the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and the deferred gains or losses are reclassified out of other comprehensive income in the same period during
which the hedged transactions affect earnings.

The following table summarizes the Company's derivatives financial instruments:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
As of

September 25, 2021
As of

September 25, 2021
As of

December 26, 2020
Balance Sheet 

Location Fair Value
Balance Sheet 

Location Fair Value
Balance Sheet 

Location Fair Value
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

2021 Swap 1 Other non-current assets $ 484 Other accrued expenses $ (330) $ — 
2021 Swap 2 Other non-current assets 691 Other accrued expenses (511) — 

2021 Swap 3 Other non-current assets 3 
Other accrued expenses/other

non-current liabilities (2,353) — 
Total hedging instruments $ 1,178 $ (3,194) $ — 
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

2018 Swap 1 $ — $ — Other accrued expenses $ (709)
2018 Swap 2 — — Other non-current liabilities (3,484)

Total non-hedging instruments $ — $ — $ (4,193)

(1)  2021 Swap 3 has $1,882 included in other accrued expenses and $471 included in other non-current liabilities.

Additional information with respect to the fair value of derivative instruments is included in Note 18 - Fair Value Measurements.

18. Fair Value Measurements:

The Company uses the accounting guidance that applies to all assets and liabilities that are being measured and reported on a fair value basis. The guidance defines fair value as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The guidance also
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Assets and liabilities carried at fair value are classified and
disclosed in one of the following three categories:
Level 1:  Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2:  Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3:  Unobservable inputs reflecting the reporting entity’s own assumptions.

The following tables set forth the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the period, by level, within the fair value
hierarchy:
 

 (1)
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 As of September 25, 2021
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Trading securities $ 1,618 $ — $ — $ 1,618 
Interest rate swaps — (2,016) — (2,016)
Contingent consideration payable — — (13,061) (13,061)
Public warrants (49,500) — — (49,500)
Private warrants — — (31,680) (31,680)

 As of December 26, 2020
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Trading securities $ 1,911 $ — $ — $ 1,911 
Interest rate swaps — (4,193) — (4,193)
Contingent consideration payable — — (14,197) (14,197)

Trading securities are valued using quoted prices on an active exchange. Trading securities represent assets held in a Rabbi Trust to fund deferred compensation liabilities and
are included as other assets on the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company utilizes interest rate swap contracts to manage our targeted mix of fixed and floating rate debt, and these contracts are valued using observable benchmark rates at
commonly quoted intervals for the full term of the swap contracts. As of September 25, 2021 and December 26, 2020, the Company's interest rate swaps were recorded on the
accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets in accordance with ASC 815.

The contingent consideration represents future potential earn-out payments related to the Resharp acquisition in fiscal 2019 and the Instafob acquisition in the first quarter of
2020. The estimated fair value of the contingent earn-outs was determined using a Monte Carlo analysis examining the frequency and mean value of the resulting earn-out
payments. The resulting value captures the risk associated with the form of the payout structure. The risk neutral method is applied, resulting in a value that captures the risk
associated with the form of the payout structure and the projection risk. The carrying amount of the liability may fluctuate significantly and actual amounts paid may be
materially different from the estimated value of the liability. As of September 25, 2021, the total contingent consideration was recorded as $472 of other accrued expenses and
$12,589 in other non-current liabilities on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of December 26, 2020, the total contingent consideration was recorded as $417 of
other accrued expenses and $13,780 in other non-current liabilities on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of September 25, 2021 compared to December 26, 2020,
the Company recorded a $692 and $418 decrease in the Resharp and Instafob contingent consideration liability, respectively. The total $1,110 gain on the revaluation was
determined by using a simulation model of the Monte Carlo analysis that included updated projections applicable to the liability as of September 25, 2021 compared to the prior
valuation period and was recorded within other income in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The Warrants were accounted for as liabilities in accordance with ASC 815-40 and are presented within warrant liabilities on the Company’s condensed consolidated balance
sheets. The warrant liabilities are measured at fair value upon assumption and on a recurring basis, with changes in fair value presented within change in fair value of warrant
liabilities in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. The Public Warrants are considered part of level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, as those securities are traded on
an active public market. At the Closing Date and at September 25, 2021, the Company valued the Private Warrants using Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The Private
Warrants were valued using a Modified Black Scholes Model, which is considered to be a Level 3 fair value measurement. The primary unobservable input utilized in
determining the fair value of the Private Warrants are the share price of the Company's common stock, the risk free rate, and the expected volatility of the Company’s common
stock. The expected volatility of the Company’s common stock was estimated to be approximately 35% and the risk free rate was 0.93% in the valuation as of September 25,
2021.

The fair value of the Company's fixed rate senior notes and junior subordinated debentures as of September 25, 2021 and December 26, 2020 were determined by utilizing
current trading prices obtained from indicative market data. As a result, the fair value measurements of the Company's senior term notes and debentures are considered to be
Level 2. The Company fully redeemed the 6.375% Senior Notes and Junior Subordinated Debentures in the third quarter of 2021. See Note 12 - Long Term Debt for additional
details.
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(dollars in thousands)

 September 25, 2021 December 26, 2020

 
Carrying
Amount

Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Amount

Estimated
Fair Value

6.375% Senior Notes $ — $ — $ 328,333 $ 327,525 
Junior Subordinated Debentures — — 123,295 128,022 

Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities are reflected in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements at book value, which approximates fair
value, due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The carrying amount of the long-term debt under the revolving credit facility approximates the fair value at
September 25, 2021 and December 26, 2020 as the interest rate is variable and approximates current market rates. The Company also believes the carrying amount of the long-
term debt under the senior term loan approximates the fair value at September 25, 2021 and December 26, 2020 because, while subject to a minimum LIBOR floor rate, the
interest rate approximates current market rates of debt with similar terms and comparable credit risk.

19. Segment Reporting:

The Company’s segment reporting structure uses the Company’s management reporting structure as the foundation for how the Company manages its business. The Company
periodically evaluates its segment reporting structure in accordance with ASC 350-20-55 and has concluded that it has three reportable segments as of September 25, 2021:
Hardware and Protective Solutions, Robotics and Digital Solutions, and Canada. The Company evaluates the performance of its segments based on revenue and income (loss)
from operations, and does not include segment assets nor non-operating income/expense items for management reporting purposes.

The table below presents revenues and income (loss) from operations for our reportable segments for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and thirteen
and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020.

 
Thirteen Weeks

Ended
September 25,

2021

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 26,
2020

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended 
September 25,

2021

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended
September 26,

2020
Revenues

Hardware and Protective Solutions $ 261,456 $ 300,307 $ 775,514 $ 782,983 
Robotics and Digital Solutions 67,499 59,186 189,729 157,691 
Canada 35,525 39,187 116,233 100,552 
Total revenues $ 364,480 $ 398,680 $ 1,081,476 $ 1,041,226 

Segment income (loss) from operations
Hardware and Protective Solutions $ (24,901) $ 30,107 $ (8,856) $ 63,383 
Robotics and Digital Solutions 11,158 3,046 17,858 4,432 
Canada 448 1,949 2,992 (2,539)
Total (loss) income from operations $ (13,295) $ 35,102 $ 11,994 $ 65,276 
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Item 2.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion provides information which the Company’s management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the Company’s operations and
financial condition. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes in addition to the consolidated
statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 26, 2020.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain disclosures related to acquisitions, refinancing, capital expenditures, resolution of pending litigation, and realization of deferred tax assets contained in this quarterly
report involve substantial risks and uncertainties and may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as
amended. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “would,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,”
“believe,” “estimate,” “continue,” “project,” or the negative of such terms or other similar expressions.

These forward-looking statements are not historical facts, but rather are based on management’s current expectations, assumptions, and projections about future events.
Although management believes that the expectations, assumptions, and projections on which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, they nonetheless could
prove to be inaccurate, and as a result, the forward-looking statements based on those expectations, assumptions, and projections also could be inaccurate. Forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance. Instead, forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that may
cause the Company’s strategy, planning, actual results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements to be materially different from any strategy, planning, future results,
levels of activity, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ materially from those currently anticipated
as a result of a number of factors, including the risks and uncertainties discussed under the caption “Risk Factors” set forth in Item 1A of the Company’s annual financial
statements for the year ended December 26, 2020 included in the S-1 filed on August 25, 2021 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Given these
uncertainties, current or prospective investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements attributable to the Company or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements included in this
report and the risks and uncertainties discussed under the caption “Risk Factors” set forth in Item 1A of the Company’s annual financial statements for the year ended
December 26, 2020 included in the S-1 filed on August 25, 2021 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”); they should not be regarded as a representation by the
Company or any other individual. We undertake no obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events, or otherwise. In light of these risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed in this report might not occur or be materially different from
those discussed.
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General

Hillman Solutions Corp.and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively, "Hillman" or "Company") are one of the largest providers of hardware-related products and related
merchandising services to retail markets in North America. Our principal business is operated through the wholly-owned subsidiary, The Hillman Group, Inc. and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries (collectively, “Hillman Group”). Hillman Group sells its products to hardware stores, home centers, mass merchants, pet supply stores, and other retail
outlets principally in the United States, Canada, Mexico, Latin America, and the Caribbean. Product lines include thousands of small parts such as fasteners and related
hardware items; threaded rod and metal shapes; keys, key duplication systems, and accessories; builder's hardware; personal protective equipment; and identification items, such
as tags and letters, numbers, and signs. We support our product sales with services that include design and installation of merchandising systems and maintenance of appropriate
in-store inventory levels.

On July 14, 2021, privately held HMAN Group Holdings Inc. ("Old Hillman"), and Landcadia Holdings III, Inc. (“Landcadia” and after the Business Combination described
herein, “New Hillman”), a special purpose acquisition company ("SPAC") consummated the previously announced business combination (the “Closing”) pursuant to the terms
of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 24, 2021 (as amended on March 12, 2021, the "Merger Agreement”). Unless the context indicates otherwise, the
discussion of the Company and it's financial condition and results of operations is with respect to New Hillman following the closing date and Old Hillman prior to the closing
date. See Note 1 - Basis of Presentation of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

In connection with the Closing, the Company entered into a new credit agreement (the “Term Credit Agreement”), which provided for a new funded term loan facility of $835.0
million and a delayed draw term loan facility of $200.0 million (of which $16.0 million was drawn). The Company also also entered into an amendment to their existing asset-
based revolving credit agreement, extending the maturity and conformed certain provisions to the Term Credit Agreement. The proceeds of the funded term loans under the
Term Credit Agreement and revolving credit loans under the ABL Credit Agreement were used, together with other available cash, to (1) refinance in full all outstanding term
loans and to terminate all outstanding commitments under the credit agreement, dated as of May 31, 2018, (2) refinance outstanding revolving credit loans, and (3) redeem in
full senior notes due July 15, 2022 (the “6.375% Senior Notes”). Additionally, we fully redeemed the 11.6% Junior Subordinated Debentures. In connection with the
refinancing we incurred a loss of $8.1 million and paid $21.0 million in financing fees. See Note 12 - Long Term Debt of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information.

On April 16, 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of Oz Post International, LLC ("OZCO"), a leading manufacturer of superior quality hardware that offers structural
fasteners and connectors used for decks, fences and other outdoor structures, for a total purchase price of $39.1 million. The Company entered into an amendment ("OZCO
Amendment") to the term loan credit agreement dated May 31, 2018 (the "2018 Term Loan"), which provided $35.0 million of incremental term loan funds to be used to
finance the acquisition. Refer to Note 5 - Acquisitions for additional information.

Current Economic Conditions

Our business is impacted by general economic conditions in the North American and international markets, particularly the U.S. and Canadian retail markets including hardware
stores, home centers, mass merchants, and other retailers.

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) was reported to have surfaced in Wuhan, China, and has since spread to a number of other countries, including
the United States and Canada. In March 2020, the World Health Organization characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. In 2020, the pandemic had a significant impact on our
business, driving high demand for personal protective equipment, including face masks, disposable gloves, sanitizing wipes, and disinfecting sprays. During 2020, at the request
of our customers, we began to sell certain categories of protective and cleaning equipment that are not a part of our core product offerings, including wipes, sprays, masks and
bulk boxes of disposable gloves. High demand and limited supply of these products available for retail sale drove prices and cost up in 2020. In contrast, in 2021 the pandemic
has had less of an impact on our business, economic activity has generally recovered and consumer access to personal protective equipment has normalized. By the end of the
third quarter of 2021 our product mix has begun to normalize back to near pre-pandemic levels. In 2021, demand for certain protective product categories softened as vaccines
were rolled out supply returned to a more normal level. In the third quarter of 2021, we evaluated our customers' needs and the market conditions and ultimately decided to exit
certain protective product categories. In connection with the exit of these product lines, we recorded
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an inventory valuation charge of $32.0 million including the write off of inventory along with costs for donation and disposal of the remaining inventory on hand.

It is possible that the COVID-19 pandemic could further impact our business, the operations of our suppliers and vendors, and the operations of our customers, especially in
light of the emergence of new variants which would cause a recurrence of high levels of infection and hospitalization. If we need to close any of our facilities or a critical
number of our employees become too ill to work, our distribution network could be materially adversely affected in a rapid manner. Similarly, if our customers experience
adverse business consequences due to COVID-19, demand for our products could also be materially adversely affected in a rapid manner. The Company continues to experience
customer demand both during the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and during the subsequent period. Our teams continue to monitor demand disruption
and there can be no assurance as to the level of demand that will prevail through the remainder of fiscal 2021. A large portion of our customers continue to operate and sell our
products, with some customers reducing operations or restricting some access to portions of the retail space. The magnitude of the financial impact on our quarterly and annual
results is dependent on the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and how quickly the U.S. and Canada economies resume normal operations.

An extended period of global supply chain, workforce availability, and economic disruption could materially affect the Company's business, the results of operations, financial
condition, access to sources of liquidity, and the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets. While a triggering event did not occur during the thirteen and thirty-nine
weeks ended September 25, 2021, a prolonged COVID-19 pandemic could negatively impact net sales growth, change key assumptions and other global and regional
macroeconomic factors that could result in future impairment charges for goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible assets and definite lived intangible assets. The impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic is fluid and continues to evolve, and therefore, we cannot predict the extent to which our business, results of operations, financial condition, or
liquidity will ultimately be impacted.

We are exposed to the risk of unfavorable changes in foreign currency exchange rates for the U.S. dollar versus local currency of our suppliers located primarily in China and
Taiwan. We purchase a significant variety of our products for resale from multiple vendors located in China and Taiwan. The purchase price of these products is routinely
negotiated in U.S. dollar amounts rather than the local currency of the vendors and our suppliers' profit margins decrease when the U.S. dollar declines in value relative to the
local currency. This puts pressure on our suppliers to increase prices to us. The U.S. dollar increased in value relative to the CNY by approximately 1.7% in 2019, declined by
6.5% in 2020, and declined by 1.1% during the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021. The U.S. dollar declined in value relative to the Taiwan dollar by approximately
0.2% in 2019, declined by 7.9% in 2020, and declined by 1.5% during the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021.

In addition, the negotiated purchase price of our products may be dependent upon market fluctuations in the cost of raw materials such as steel, zinc, and nickel used by our
vendors in their manufacturing processes. The final purchase cost of our products may also be dependent upon inflation or deflation in the local economies of vendors in China
and Taiwan that could impact the cost of labor used in the manufacturing of our products.

We are also exposed to risk of unfavorable changes in the Canadian dollar exchange rate versus the U.S. dollar. Our sales in Canada are denominated in Canadian dollars while a
majority of the products are sourced in U.S. dollars. A weakening of the Canadian dollar versus the U.S. dollar results in lower sales in terms of U.S. dollars while the cost of
sales remains unchanged. We have a practice of hedging some of our Canadian subsidiary's purchases denominated in U.S. dollars. The U.S. dollar declined in value relative to
the Canadian dollar by approximately 4.1% in 2019, declined by 1.9% in 2020, and declined by 1.2% during the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021. We may take
pricing action, when warranted, in an attempt to offset a portion of product cost increases. The ability of our operating divisions to institute price increases and seek price
concessions, as appropriate, is dependent on competitive market conditions.

Results of Operations
The following analysis of results of operations includes a brief discussion of the factors that affected our operating results and a comparative analysis of the thirteen weeks
ended September 25, 2021 and the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020.
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Thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 vs the Thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020

 
Thirteen Weeks Ended

September 25, 2021
Thirteen Weeks Ended

September 26, 2020

(dollars in thousands) Amount % of
Net Sales Amount % of

Net Sales
Net sales $ 364,480 100.0 % $ 398,680 100.0 %
Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation and
amortization shown separately below) 236,999 65.0 % 227,481 57.1 %
Selling, general and administrative expenses 110,447 30.3 % 107,333 26.9 %
Depreciation 14,454 4.0 % 15,926 4.0 %
Amortization 15,504 4.3 % 14,883 3.7 %
Other (income) expense 371 0.1 % (2,045) (0.5)%

(Loss) income from operations (13,295) (3.6)% 35,102 8.8 %
Loss on change in fair value of warrant
liability 3,990 1.1 % — — %
Interest expense, net of investment income 13,228 3.6 % 23,813 6.0 %
Mark-to-market adjustment of interest rate
swap (261) (0.1)% (773) (0.2)%
Refinancing charges 8,070 52.1 % — — %

Income (loss) before income taxes (38,322) (10.5)% 12,062 3.0 %
Income tax expense (benefit) (5,798) (1.6)% 2,758 0.7 %

Net income (loss) $ (32,524) (8.9)% $ 9,304 2.3 %

Adjusted EBITDA $ 56,528 15.5 % $ 74,983 18.8 %

(1) Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure. Refer to the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section for additional information, including our definition and our use of
Adjusted EBITDA, and for a reconciliation from net income to Adjusted EBITDA.

Net Sales

Net sales for the third quarter of 2021 were $364.5 million, a decrease of approximately $34.2 million compared to net sales of $398.7 million for the third quarter of 2020. Sales
of personal protective equipment decreased by $25.9 million due to lower demand for COVID-19 protective and cleaning products in the third quarter of 2021. Sales of
hardware products decreased by $12.9 million. Sales in Canada decreased $3.7 million. The decreases in hardware products and sales in Canada were primarily due to softer
retail sales partially offset by price increases taken in the third quarter of 2021 in response to inflationary pressures in the market related to the cost of products, inbound and
outbound transportation costs, and personnel costs. These decreases were partially offset by increased sales of keys and key accessories of $7.6 million. Key and key accessory
sales were negatively impacted in the prior year by reduced retail foot traffic and restricted access to key duplicating kiosks as a result of COVID-19.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales was $237.0 million, or 65.0% of net sales, in the third quarter of 2021, an increase of approximately $9.5 million compared to $227.5 million, or 57.1% of net
sales, in the third quarter of 2020. The increase of 7.9% in cost of sales, expressed as a percent of net sales, in the third quarter of 2021 compared to the third quarter of 2020 was
primarily due to an inventory valuation adjustment in our Hardware and Protective Solutions segment of $32.0 million primarily related to strategic review of our COVID-19
related product offerings. In the third quarter of 2021, we evaluated our customers' needs and the market conditions and ultimately decided to exit certain protective product
categories related to COVID-19, including cleaning wipes, disinfecting sprays, face masks, and certain disposable gloves. The remaining increase was primarily due to
inflation.

(1)
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Expenses
Selling, general, and administrative ("SG&A") expenses were approximately $110.4 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021, an increase of approximately $3.1
million, compared to $107.3 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020. The following changes in underlying trends impacted the change in operating expenses:

• Selling expense was $42.0 million in the third quarter of 2021, an increase of $2.6 million compared to $39.4 million in the third quarter of 2020. The increase in selling
expense was primarily due to increased marketing, variable compensation, and travel and entertainment expense in the third quarter of 2021.

• Warehouse and delivery expenses were $44.9 million in the third quarter of 2021, an increase of $1.0 million compared to $43.9 million in the third quarter of 2020. The
additional expense was primarily driven by inflation.

• General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses were $23.5 million in the third quarter of 2021, a decrease of $0.5 million compared to $24.0 million in the third quarter
of 2020. The $0.5 million decrease was primarily driven by lower legal fees and acquisition related expenses along with lower variable compensation. These were
partially offset by increased stock based compensation (see Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information).

Depreciation expense was $14.5 million in the third quarter of 2021 compared to depreciation expense of $15.9 million in the third quarter of 2020. The decrease was due to
certain assets becoming fully depreciated. Amortization expense was $15.5 million in the third quarter of 2021 which was compared to $14.9 million in the third quarter of
2020. The increase was primarily due to the acquisition of Ozco in the current year.

Other expense was $0.4 million in the third quarter of 2021 compared to other income of $2.0 million in the third quarter of 2020. Other expense in the third quarter of 2021 was
comprised primarily of exchange rate losses of $0.3 million along with a a $0.1 million loss on the revaluation of the contingent consideration associated with the acquisitions of
Resharp and Instafob, (see Note 18 - Fair Value Measurements of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information). In the third quarter of
2020 other income consisted primarily of $1.8 million in cash received from the Canadian government as a part of the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy program for relief
during the second quarter shutdown in Canada during the COVID-19 outbreak. We also recorded exchange rate gains of $0.3 million in the third quarter of 2020.
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Thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 vs the Thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020

 
Thirty-nine Weeks Ended 

September 25, 2021
Thirty-nine Weeks Ended

September 26, 2020

(dollars in thousands) Amount % of
Net Sales Amount % of

Net Sales
Net sales $ 1,081,476 100.0 % $ 1,041,226 100.0 %
Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation and
amortization shown separately below) 654,264 60.5 % 590,294 56.7 %
Selling, general and administrative expenses 325,288 30.1 % 292,056 28.0 %
Depreciation 46,065 4.3 % 50,673 4.9 %
Amortization 45,827 4.2 % 44,596 4.3 %
Other income (1,962) (0.2)% (1,669) (0.2)%

Income from operations 11,994 1.1 % 65,276 6.3 %
Loss on change in fair value of warrant liability 3,990 0.4 % — — %
Interest expense, net of investment income 57,521 5.3 % 77,018 7.4 %
Mark-to-market adjustment of interest rate swap (1,685) (0.2)% 1,169 0.1 %
Refinancing charges 8,070 17.6 % — — %

Loss before income taxes (55,902) (5.2)% (12,911) (1.2)%
Income tax expense (benefit) (11,023) (1.0)% (2,374) (0.2)%

Net loss $ (44,879) (4.1)% $ (10,537) (1.0)%

Adjusted EBITDA $ 168,806 15.6 % $ 178,114 17.1 %

(1) Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure. Refer to the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section for additional information, including our definition and our use of
Adjusted EBITDA, and for a reconciliation from net income to Adjusted EBITDA.

Net Sales

Net sales for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 were $1,081.5 million, an increase of approximately $40.3 million compared to net sales of $1,041.2 million for
the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. Key and engraving sales increased $31.9 million and sales in Canada increased $15.7 million. Key and engraving sales and
sales in Canada were both negatively impacted by low retail foot traffic and limited access to key and engraving machines in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020
due to COVID-19. Sales of hardware products increased by $13.9 million driven by strong retail demand and price increases taken in the third quarter of 2021 in response to
inflationary pressures in the market related to the cost of products, inbound and outbound transportation costs, and personnel costs. These increases were partially offset by sales
of personal protective equipment, which decreased by $21.4 million due to lower demand for COVID-19 protective and cleaning equipment in 2021.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales was $654.3 million, or 60.5% of net sales, in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, an increase of approximately $64.0 million compared to $590.3
million, or 56.7% of net sales, in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The increase of 3.8% in cost of sales, expressed as a percent of net sales, in 2021 compared to
the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020 was primarily due to an inventory valuation adjustment in our Hardware and Protective Solutions segment of $32.0 million
primarily related to strategic review of our COVID-19 related product offerings. In the third quarter of 2021, we evaluated our customers' needs and the market conditions and
ultimately decided to exit certain protective product categories related to COVID-19, including cleaning wipes, disinfecting sprays, face masks, and certain disposable gloves.
The remaining increase was primarily due to inflation.

(1)
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Expenses
Selling, general, and administrative ("SG&A") expenses were approximately $325.3 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, an increase of approximately
$33.2 million, compared to $292.1 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The following changes in underlying trends impacted the change in operating
expenses:

• Selling expense was $119.5 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, an increase of $8.1 million compared to $111.4 million in the thirty-nine weeks
ended September 26, 2020. The increase in selling expense was primarily due to increased marketing, variable compensation, and travel and entertainment expense in
the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021.

• Warehouse and delivery expenses were $129.4 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, an increase of $10.8 million compared to $118.6 million in
the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The additional expense was primarily driven by higher sales volume and inflation.

• General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses were $76.5 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, an increase of $14.5 million compared to $62.0
million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. In the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 we incurred $19.7 million of legal and consulting
expense associated with the pending merger with Landcadia along with increased legal fees associated with our litigation with KeyMe (see Note 7 - Commitments and
Contingencies of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information). We also incurred increased stock based compensation (see Note
2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information). These increases were partially
offset by decreased variable compensation.

Depreciation expense was $46.1 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 compared to depreciation expense of $50.7 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended
September 26, 2020. The decrease was due to certain assets becoming fully depreciated. Amortization expense was $45.8 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25,
2021 which was comparable to $44.6 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The increase was primarily due to the acquisition of Ozco in the current year.

Other income was $2.0 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 compared to other income of $1.7 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26,
2020. Other income in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 was comprised primarily of a $1.1 million gain on the revaluation of the contingent consideration
associated with the acquisitions of Resharp and Instafob, (see Note 18 - Fair Value Measurements of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information) along with exchange rate gains of $0.9 million. In the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020 other income consisted primarily of $1.8 million in cash
received from the Canadian government as a part of the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy program for relief during the second quarter shutdown in Canada during the COVID-
19 outbreak. We also recorded a $1.3 million gain on the revaluation of the contingent consideration associated with the acquisitions of Resharp and Instafob, (see Note 18 -
Fair Value Measurements of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information) offset by exchange rate gains of $0.3 million.
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Results of Operations – Operating Segments

The following tables provides supplemental information regarding our net sales and profitability by operating segment for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended
September 25, 2021 and the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020 (dollars in thousands):
 
Hardware and Protective Solutions

 

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 25,
2021

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 26,
2020

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended 

September 25,
2021

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended

September 26,
2020

Hardware and Protective Solutions
Revenues $ 261,456 $ 300,307 $ 775,514 $ 782,983 
Segment (loss) income from
operations (24,901) 30,107 (8,856) 63,383 
Adjusted EBITDA 30,634 52,623 95,780 123,989 

(1) Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure. Refer to the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section for additional information, including our definition and our use of
Adjusted EBITDA, and for a reconciliation from net income to Adjusted EBITDA.

Thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 vs the Thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020
Net Sales

Net sales for our Hardware and Protective Solutions operating segment decreased by $38.9 million in thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 to $261.5 million as compared
to $300.3 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020. Sales of personal protective equipment decreased by $25.9 million due to high demand for gloves and face
masks in 2020 as compared to the same period in 2021. Sales of hardware products, which decreased by $12.9 million driven primarily by softer retail sales partially offset by
price increases taken in the third quarter of 2021 in response to inflationary pressures in the market related to the cost of products, inbound and outbound transportation costs,
and personnel costs.

(Loss) income from Operations

(Loss) income from operations of our Hardware and Protective Solutions operating segment decreased by approximately $55.0 million in the thirteen weeks ended September
25, 2021 to a loss of $24.9 million as compared to income of $30.1 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020. The decrease was driven by the decreases in sales
along with increased costs. In the third quarter of 2021, we recorded an inventory valuation adjustment in our Hardware and Protective Solutions segment of $32.0 million
primarily related to strategic review of our COVID-19 related product offerings. In the third quarter of 2021, we evaluated our customers' needs and the market conditions and
ultimately decided to exit certain protective product categories related to COVID-19, including cleaning wipes, disinfecting sprays, face masks, and certain disposable gloves.

Thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 vs the Thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020
Net Sales

Net sales for our Hardware and Protective Solutions operating segment decreased by $7.5 million in thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 to $775.5 million as compared
to $783.0 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. Sales of personal protective equipment decreased by $21.4 million due to due to lower demand for
COVID-19 protective and cleaning equipment in 2021. This decrease was partially offset by sales of hardware products, which increased by $13.9 million driven by strong retail
demand along with price increases taken in the third quarter of 2021 in response to inflationary pressures in the market related to the cost of products, inbound and outbound
transportation costs, and personnel costs.

Income from Operations

(1)
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Income from operations of our Hardware and Protective Solutions operating segment decreased by approximately $72.2 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25,
2021 to a loss of $8.9 million as compared to income of $63.4 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The decrease was driven by the decreases in sales
along with increased expenses.

• Cost of good sold increased by approximately $46.4 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 to $519.5 million as compared to $473.0 million in the
thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales was 67.0% in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, an increase of
6.6% from 60.4% in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. In the third quarter of 2021, we recorded an inventory valuation adjustment in our Hardware and
Protective Solutions segment of $32.0 million primarily related to strategic review of our COVID-19 related product offerings. In the third quarter of 2021, after
considering our customers' ongoing needs along with market demand, pricing, and more widespread product availability, we exited the market for certain products
related to COVID-19 including cleaning wipes, disinfecting sprays, face masks, and certain disposable gloves. The remaining increase in cost of sales as a percentage of
net sales was primarily driven by the inflation pressure described above.

• Warehouse expense increased $8.9 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 compared to the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The
additional expense was primarily driven by inflation.

• G&A expense increased $8.7 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 compared to the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The additional
expense was primarily due to increased legal and consulting expense associated with the pending merger with Landcadia along with increased stock compensation
expense.

Robotics and Digital Solutions

 

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 25,
2021

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 26,
2020

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended 
September 25,

2021

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended
September 26,

2020
Robotics and Digital Solutions

Revenues $ 67,499 $ 59,186 $ 189,729 $ 157,691 
Segment income from operations 11,158 3,046 17,858 4,432 
Adjusted EBITDA 23,483 17,995 64,596 47,938 

(1) Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure. Refer to the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section for additional information, including our definition and our use of
Adjusted EBITDA, and for a reconciliation from net income to Adjusted EBITDA.

Thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 vs the Thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020
Net Sales

Net sales in our Robotics and Digital Solutions operating segment increased by $8.3 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 to $67.5 million as compared to
$59.2 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020. The increased sales were primarily due to an increase of $7.6 million in keys sales along with an increase of $0.6
million in engraving sales. Key sales in the third quarter of 2020 were negatively impacted by restricted access to retail key duplication services as a result of COVID-19 in
certain markets.

Income from Operations
Income from operations of our Robotics and Digital Solutions operating segment increased by approximately $8.1 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 to
$11.2 million as compared to $3.0 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020. The increase was primarily due to the increased sales partially offset by increased
variable selling expenses. The increased selling expenses were offset by lower legal fees associated with our litigation with KeyMe (see Note 7 - Commitments and
Contingencies of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information).

(1)
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Thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 vs the Thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020
Net Sales

Net sales in our Robotics and Digital Solutions operating segment increased by $32.0 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 to $189.7 million as compared
to $157.7 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The increased sales were primarily due to an increase of $26.0 million in keys sales along with an increase
of $6.0 million in engraving sales. Key sales in the third quarter of 2020 were negatively impacted by restricted access to retail key duplication services as a result of COVID-19
in certain markets.

Income from Operations
Income from operations of our Robotics and Digital Solutions operating segment increased by approximately $13.4 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021
to $17.9 million as compared to $4.4 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The increase was primarily due to the increased sales partially offset by
increased variable selling expenses along with increased legal fees associated with our litigation with KeyMe (see Note 7 - Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information).

Canada

 

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 25,
2021

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 26,
2020

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended 
September 25,

2021

Thirty-nine
Weeks Ended
September 26,

2020
Canada

Revenues $ 35,525 $ 39,187 $ 116,233 $ 100,552 
Segment income (loss) from operations 448 1,949 2,992 (2,539)
Adjusted EBITDA 2,411 4,365 8,430 6,187 

(1) Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure. Refer to the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section for additional information, including our definition and our use of
Adjusted EBITDA, and for a reconciliation from net income to Adjusted EBITDA.

Thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 vs the Thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020
Net Sales

Net sales in our Canada operating segment decreased by $3.7 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 to $35.5 million as compared to $39.2 million in the
thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020. The decrease was primarily due to softer retail sales partially offset by price increases taken in the third quarter of 2021 in response to
inflationary pressures in the market related to the cost of products, inbound and outbound transportation costs, and personnel costs.

Income from Operations

Income from operations of our Canada operating segment decreased by approximately $1.5 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021 to $0.4 million as compared
to $1.9 million in the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020. In the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020 we received $1.8 million in cash received from the Canadian
government as a part of the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy program for relief during the second quarter shutdown in Canada during the COVID-19 outbreak which was
recorded as other income.

(1)
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Thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 vs the Thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020
Net Sales
Net sales in our Canada operating segment increased by $15.7 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 to $116.2 million as compared to $100.6 million in the
thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. The increase was primarily due to strong demand for fastening and hardware products with big box retailers along with price
increases taken in the third quarter of 2021 in response to inflationary pressures in the market related to the cost of products, inbound and outbound transportation costs, and
personnel costs.

Income from Operations

Driven by higher sales, income from operations of our Canada operating segment increased by approximately $5.5 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 to
$3.0 million as compared to a loss of $2.5 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. Additionally, in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020 we
received $1.8 million in cash received from the Canadian government as a part of the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy program for relief during the second quarter shutdown
in Canada during the COVID-19 outbreak which was recorded as other income.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure and is the primary basis used to measure the operational strength and performance of our businesses as well as to assist in
the evaluation of underlying trends in our businesses. This measure eliminates the significant level of noncash depreciation and amortization expense that results from the
capital-intensive nature of our businesses and from intangible assets recognized in business combinations. It is also unaffected by our capital and tax structures, as our
management excludes these results when evaluating our operating performance. Our management and Board of Directors use this financial measure to evaluate our
consolidated operating performance and the operating performance of our operating segments and to allocate resources and capital to our operating segments. Additionally, we
believe that Adjusted EBITDA is useful to investors because it is one of the bases for comparing our operating performance with that of other companies in our industries,
although our measure of Adjusted EBITDA may not be directly comparable to similar measures used by other companies.

The following table presents a reconciliation of Net loss, the most directly comparable financial measures under GAAP, to Adjusted EBITDA for the periods presented:
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Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 25,
2021

Thirteen Weeks
Ended

September 26,
2020

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended 

September 25,
2021

Thirty-nine Weeks
Ended

September 26,
2020

Net loss $ (32,524) $ 9,304 $ (44,879) $ (10,537)
Income tax benefit (5,798) 2,758 (11,023) (2,374)
Interest expense, net 11,801 20,688 49,979 67,746 
Interest expense on junior subordinated debentures 1,471 3,219 7,775 9,555 
Investment income on trust common securities (44) (94) (233) (283)
Depreciation 14,454 15,926 46,065 50,673 
Amortization 15,504 14,883 45,827 44,596 
Mark-to-market adjustment on interest rate swaps (261) (773) (1,685) 1,169 
EBITDA $ 4,603 $ 65,911 $ 91,826 $ 160,545 

Stock compensation expense 5,280 1,149 8,817 3,818 
Management fees 56 130 270 451 
Restructuring 462 651 571 3,361 
Litigation expense 487 2,980 10,769 5,654 
Acquisition and integration expense 802 1,054 8,941 2,044 
Buy-back expense 650 — 2,000 — 
Anti-dumping duties — — 2,636 — 
Facility closures — 3,108 — 3,541 
Loss on change in fair value of warrant liability 3,990 — 3,990 — 
Refinancing charges 8,070 — 8,070 — 
Inventory valuation related charges 32,026 — 32,026 — 
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 102 — (1,110) (1,300)

Adjusted EBITDA $ 56,528 $ 74,983 $ 168,806 $ 178,114 

(1) Restructuring includes restructuring costs associated with restructuring in our Canada segment announced in 2018, including facility consolidation, severance, sale of
property and equipment, and charges relating to exiting certain lines of business. Also included is restructuring in our United Stated business announced in 2019,
including severance related to management realignment and the integration of sales and operating functions (see Note 10 - Restructuring of the Notes to Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information). Finally, includes consulting and other costs associated with streamlining our manufacturing and
distribution operations.

(2) Litigation expense includes legal fees associated with our litigation with KeyMe, Inc. (see Note 7 - Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information).

(3) Acquisition and integration expense includes professional fees, non-recurring bonuses, and other costs related to the pending merger along with historical acquisitions.
(4) Infrequent buy backs associated with new business wins.
(5) Anti-dumping duties assessed related to the nail business for prior year purchases.
(6) Facility exits include costs associated with the closure of facilities in San Antonio, Texas and Parma, Ohio.
(7) In connection with the merger,we refinanced our Term Credit Agreement and ABL Revolver. Proceeds from the refinancing were used to redeem in full senior notes due

July 15, 2022 (the “6.375% Senior Notes”) and the 11.6% Junior Subordinated Debentures (see Note 12 - Long Term Debt of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information).

(8) In the third quarter of 2021, we recorded an inventory valuation adjustment in our Hardware and Protective Solutions segment of $32.0 million primarily related to
strategic review of our COVID-19 related product offerings. We evaluated our customers' needs and the market conditions and ultimately decided to exit the following
protective product categories related to COVID-19; cleaning wipes, disinfecting sprays, face masks, and certain disposable

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

 (6)

(7)

(8)
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gloves (see the Current Economic Conditions section of Management's discussion and analysis for additional information).

The following tables presents a reconciliation of segment operating income, the most directly comparable financial measures under GAAP, to segment Adjusted EBITDA for
the periods presented (amounts in thousands). Certain amounts in the prior year presentation between segments were reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Thirteen weeks ended September 25,
2021

Hardware and
Protective
Solutions

Robotics and
Digital Solutions Canada Consolidated

Operating income (loss) $ (24,901) $ 11,158 $ 448 $ (13,295)

Depreciation and amortization 17,615 10,842 1,501 29,958 

Stock compensation expense 4,535 745 — 5,280 

Management fees 47 9 — 56 

Restructuring — — 462 462 

Inventory valuation 32,026 — — 32,026 

Litigation expense — 487 — 487 
Acquisition and integration expense 662 140 — 802 
Buy-back expense 650 — — 650 
Change in fair value of contingent
consideration — 102 — 102 

Adjusted EBITDA $ 30,634 $ 23,483 $ 2,411 $ 56,528 

Thirteen weeks ended September 26,
2020

Hardware and
Protective
Solutions

Robotics and
Digital Solutions Canada Consolidated

Operating income (loss) $ 30,107 $ 3,046 $ 1,949 $ 35,102 

Depreciation and amortization 17,146 11,898 1,765 30,809 

Stock compensation expense 1,003 146 — 1,149 

Management fees 114 16 — 130 

Restructuring — — 651 651 

Litigation expense — 2,980 — 2,980 

Acquisition and integration expense 886 168 — 1,054 
Facility closures 3,108 — — 3,108 
Corporate and intersegment
adjustments    259 (259) — — 

Adjusted EBITDA $ 52,623 $ 17,995 $ 4,365 $ 74,983 
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Thirty-nine weeks ended September
25, 2021

Hardware and
Protective
Solutions

Robotics and
Digital Solutions Canada Consolidated

Operating income (loss) $ (8,856) $ 17,858 $ 2,992 $ 11,994 

Depreciation and amortization 52,135 34,816 4,941 91,892 

Stock compensation expense 7,591 1,226 — 8,817 

Management fees 232 38 — 270 

Restructuring 64 10 497 571 

Inventory valuation 32,026 — — 32,026 

Litigation expense — 10,769 — 10,769 
Acquisition and integration expense 7,952 989 — 8,941 

Buy-back expense 2,000 — — 2,000 
Anti-dumping duties 2,636 — — 2,636 
Change in fair value of contingent
consideration — (1,110) — (1,110)

Adjusted EBITDA $ 95,780 $ 64,596 $ 8,430 $ 168,806 

Thirty-nine weeks ended September
26, 2020

Hardware and
Protective
Solutions

Robotics and
Digital Solutions Canada Consolidated

Operating income (loss) $ 63,383 $ 4,432 $ (2,539) $ 65,276 

Depreciation and amortization 51,608 38,296 5,365 95,269 

Stock compensation expense 3,333 485 — 3,818 

Management fees 394 57 — 451 

Restructuring — — 3,361 3,361 

Litigation expense — 5,654 — 5,654 

Acquisition and integration expense 1,518 526 — 2,044 
Facility closures 3,541 — — 3,541 
Change in fair value of contingent
consideration — (1,300) — (1,300)
Corporate and intersegment
adjustments    212 (212) — — 

Adjusted EBITDA $ 123,989 $ 47,938 $ 6,187 $ 178,114 
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Income Taxes

For the thirteen weeks ended September 25, 2021, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $5.8 million based on a pre-tax loss of $38.3 million. The Company recorded
an income tax benefit for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 of $11.0 million based on a pre-tax loss of $55.9 million. The effective income tax rate was 15.1%
and 19.7% for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, respectively.

The effective rate differed from the federal statutory rate due to an estimated increase in GILTI from the Company's Canadian operations, state and foreign income taxes, and
certain non-deductible expenses.

For the thirteen weeks ended September 26, 2020, the Company recorded an income tax provision of $2.8 million based on a pre-tax income of $12.1 million. The Company
recorded an income tax benefit for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020 of $2.4 million based on a pre-tax loss of $12.9 million. The effective income tax rate was
22.9% and 18.4% for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020, respectively.

The effective income tax rate differed from the federal statutory tax rate in the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020 primarily due to non-deductible stock
compensation expenses, and state and foreign income taxes.

On March 27, 2020, the President of the United States signed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) into law. The CARES Act included,
among other things, corporate income tax relief in the form of accelerated alternative minimum tax ("AMT") refunds, allowed employers to defer certain payroll tax payments
throughout 2020, and provided favorable corporate interest deductions for the 2020 reporting period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The statements of cash flows reflect the changes in cash and cash equivalents for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and the thirty-nine weeks ended September
26, 2020 by classifying transactions into three major categories: operating, investing, and financing activities.

Net cash used for operating activities for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 was $105.3 million as compared to $67.6 million of cash provided by operation
activities in the comparable prior year period. Operating cash flows for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 were unfavorably impacted by (1) increased inventory
driven by inflation and higher on hand amounts to maintain service levels with extended lead times, (2) payments made for long term incentive programs and other variable
compensation. Operating cash flows for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020 were favorably impacted by the increased net income in the year.
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Net cash used for investing activities was $76.1 million and $30.0 million for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26,
2020, respectively. During the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021, we acquired Oz Post International, LLC ("OZCO") for approximately $39.1 million, (see Note 5 -
Acquisitions of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information). Excluding acquisitions, the primary use of cash in both periods was our
investment in new key duplicating kiosks and machines.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $173.7 million for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021. We received cash of $455.2 million on the recapitalization of
Landcadia, net of transaction costs and $363.3 million from the issuance of common stock to the PIPE.

In connection with the Merger, we refinanced all of our outstanding debt. On July 14, 2021 we entered into a new credit agreement, which provided for a new funded term loan
facility of $835.0 million and a delayed draw term loan facility of $200.0 million (of which $16.0 million was drawn). Concurrently with the Term Credit Agreement, we also
entered into an amendment to their existing asset-based revolving credit agreement (the “ABL Amendment”) and extended the maturity and conformed certain provisions to the
Term Credit Agreement. The proceeds were used, together with other available cash, to (1) refinance in full all outstanding term loans and to terminate all outstanding
commitments under the credit agreement, dated as of May 31, 2018, (2) refinance outstanding revolving credit loans, and (3) redeem in full senior notes due July 15, 2022 (the
“6.375% Senior Notes”), issued by the Borrower and as a result the 6.375% Senior Notes are redeemed, satisfied and discharged and no longer in effect. Additionally, we fully
redeemed the 11.6% Junior Subordinated Debentures. In connection with the refinancing we incurred a loss of $8.1 million and paid $38.7 million in financing fees, of which
$21.0 million was recorded as a financing activity. See Note 12 - Long Term Debt of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

In the second quarter of 2021, we entered into an amendment ("OZCO Amendment") to the term loan credit agreement dated May 31, 2018, which provided $35.0 million of
incremental term loan funds to be used to finance the acquisition, (see Note 5 - Acquisitions of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information). In the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 we used $8.0 million to make regularly scheduled payments under our old Term Credit agreement. Our
revolver draws, net of repayments, provided cash of $2.0 million in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021. Finally, in the thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021
the Company received $1.8 million on the exercise of stock options.

Net cash used by financing activities was $24.6 million for the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. Revolver repayments were $16.0 million, net of draws, in
the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020. Additionally, we used cash to pay $8.0 million in principal payments on the senior term loan under the Senior Facilities.

Management believes that projected cash flows from operations and revolver availability will be sufficient to fund working capital and capital expenditure needs for the next 12
months. Our working capital (current assets minus current liabilities) position of $373.3 million as of September 25, 2021 represents an increase of $131.5 million from the
December 26, 2020 level of $241.8 million. Excluding the inventory charge discussed throughout MD&A, the COVID-19 pandemic has not, as of the date of this report, had a
materially negative impact on our operations or demand for our products, it has not had a materially negative impact on the Company's liquidity position. We expect the
inventory related charge to be one time in nature. We have initiated mitigating efforts to manage non-critical capital spending, assess operating spend, and preserve cash. We
expect to generate sufficient operating cash flows to meet our short-term liquidity needs, and we expect to maintain access to the capital markets, although there can be no
assurance of our ability to do so. However, the continued spread of COVID-19 has led to disruption and volatility in the global capital markets, which, depending on future
developments, could impact our capital resources and liquidity in the future.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”).
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Significant accounting policies and estimates are summarized in the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements. Some accounting policies require management to
exercise significant judgment in selecting the appropriate assumptions for calculating financial estimates. Such judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. These
judgments are based on our historical experience, known trends in our industry, terms of existing contracts, and other information from outside sources, as appropriate.
Management believes that these estimates and assumptions are reasonable based on the facts and circumstances as of September 25, 2021, however, actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptions and circumstances.

There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates which are discussed in the “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” section of
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Part II, Item 7 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 26, 2020, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. In addition, our most significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 2 and elsewhere in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in the S-1 filed on August 25, 2021 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See “Note 4 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements” of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 3.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Exposure
We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes as borrowings under the Senior Facilities bear interest at variable interest rates. It is our policy to enter into interest rate
swap and interest rate cap transactions only to the extent considered necessary to meet our objectives. Furthermore, regulatory changes, such as the announcement of the United
Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority to phase out the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") by the end of 2021, may adversely affect our floating rate debt and interest
rate derivatives. If LIBOR ceases to exist, we may need to renegotiate any credit agreements or interest rate derivatives agreements extending beyond 2021 that utilize LIBOR
as a factor in determining the interest rate or hedge rate, which could adversely impact our cost of debt.
Based on our exposure to variable rate borrowings at September 25, 2021, after consideration of our LIBOR floor rate and interest rate swap agreements, a one percent
(1%) change in the weighted average interest rate for a period of one year would change the annual interest expense by approximately $5.1 million.

Foreign Currency Exchange

We are exposed to foreign exchange rate changes of the Canadian and Mexican currencies as they impact the $163.5 million tangible and intangible net asset value of our
Canadian and Mexican subsidiaries as of September 25, 2021. The foreign subsidiaries net tangible assets were $100.0 million and the net intangible assets were $63.5 million
as of September 25, 2021.

Item 4.

Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based upon that
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective, as of September 25, 2021, in
ensuring that material information required to be disclosed in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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As previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 26, 2020, management concluded that we did not design and maintain effective
controls over the completeness and accuracy of the accounting for, and disclosure of, the valuation allowance against deferred income taxes. The material weakness resulted in
material errors in the application of certain provisions of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“2017 Tax Act”) related to the IRC §163(j) interest limitation (Interest Limitation).
This material weakness resulted in material errors in our income tax benefit and deferred tax liabilities that were corrected through the restatement of the consolidated financial
statements as of and for the years ended December 28, 2019 and December 29, 2018. Additionally, this material weakness could result in misstatements to the aforementioned
account balances or disclosures that would result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.
In response to the material weakness described above, management implemented changes to its internal control over financial reporting to remediate the control deficiencies
that gave rise to the material weakness. Those changes included the engagement of third party consultants to assist with technical tax accounting research and application of
guidance, the addition of a committee to review technical accounting issues and ensure we have the appropriate subject matter experts engaged, and hiring additional personnel
in our tax department.
We have tested the newly implemented controls and found them to be effective, and therefore have concluded that as of September 25, 2021, the previously identified material
weakness has been remediated.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Except as described above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the
thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II
OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. – Legal Proceedings.
We are subject to various claims and litigation that arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of our management, the ultimate resolution of the pending litigation
matters will not have a material adverse effect on our condensed consolidated financial position, operations, or cash flows.

Item 1A – Risk Factors.
There have been no material changes to the risks from those disclosed in the S-1 filed on August 25, 2021 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Item 2. – Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
Not Applicable.

Item 3. – Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
Not Applicable.

Item 4. – Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not Applicable.

Item 5. – Other Information.
Not Applicable.

Item 6. – Exhibits.

a) Exhibits, including those incorporated by reference.
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31.1 * Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act
31.2 * Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act
32.1 * Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 * Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101 The following financial information from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 25, 2021 filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on November 3, 2021, formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting Language: (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
September 25, 2021 and December 26, 2020, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks
ended September 25, 2021 and the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the
thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and the thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020, (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders'
Equity for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 and the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 26, 2020, and (v) Notes to
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HILLMAN SOLUTIONS CORP.
 

/s/    Robert O. Kraft /s/    Anne S. McCalla
Robert O. Kraft Anne S. McCalla

Chief Financial Officer Controller
(Chief Accounting Officer)

DATE: November 3, 2021
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Douglas J. Cahill, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Hillman Solutions Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: November 3, 2021 /s/ Douglas J. Cahill
Douglas J. Cahill
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Robert O. Kraft, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Hillman Solutions Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15e and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)    Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)    Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c)    Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)    Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)    All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial information; and

b)    Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: November 3, 2021 /s/ Robert O. Kraft
Robert O. Kraft
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 (the “Report”) of Hillman Solutions Corp. (the
“Registrant”), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof; I, Douglas J. Cahill, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Registrant,
certify, to the best of my knowledge, that:

(1)    The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2)    The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Registrant.

                                /s/ Douglas J. Cahill
                                Name: Douglas J. Cahill
                                Date: November 3, 2021



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the thirteen and thirty-nine weeks ended September 25, 2021 (the “Report”) of Hillman Solutions Corp. (the
“Registrant”), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof; I, Robert O. Kraft, the Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, certify, to the best of
my knowledge, that:

(1)    The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2)    The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Registrant.

                                 /s/ Robert O. Kraft
                                Name: Robert O. Kraft
                                Date: November 3, 2021


